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>>Committee commenced at 8:59

Chairman (Mr. Schell): Good morning. |
would like to welcome everybody back to
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the hearing for HR. We will start with a
prayer. | would like to ask Mr. Ningark to
do the prayer, please.

>>Prayer

Chairman: Thank you. We will go to Item
2, review and adoption of the agenda. Is
everybody in agreement?

Some Members: Agreed.

Chairman: Before we go to the paragraph-
by-paragraph [review], | would like to go
back to three questions that were taken as
notice to be answered this morning, and
then | would like to ask the Deputy
Minister of Human Resources to update the
Committee on the three issues that she took
as notice yesterday. | will review these
briefly.

The first issue was raised by Mr. Okalik
concerning the advertisement that was in
the Globe and Mail earlier this fall
corresponding the recruitment of a new
comptroller general for the Department of
Finance and a new Assistant Deputy
Minister for the Department of Health and
Social Services. Mr. Okalik had noted that
this advertisement, which was issued by a
headhunting firm, did not indicate if the
government’s Priority Hiring Policy
applied to the competition.

The second issue was raised by Mr.
Ningeongan concerning the news release
that the government issued two weeks ago
following the cabinet retreat. The news
release announced that the Cabinet had
agreed to cut down on duplication in the
Government of Nunavut, contribute to
capacity building, and re-profiling
vacancies. The Deputy Minister committed
to us yesterday that she would find out
exactly what cabinet meant by this.
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The third issue what raised by Mr. Elliott.
He had noted that in a recent court filing
related to NTI’s lawsuit against the
government, the GN stated that the
Government of Canada has, and | quote,
“refused to provide to the Government of
Nunavut the necessary funding... to allow
it to develop and implement the necessary
training and other measures required to
increase Inuit participation in government
employment to a representative level. To
the extent that the Government of Nunavut
has been unable to comply with all of its
obligations in respect of Article 23, that is
the result of Canada’s failure to comply
with its funding obligations.”

As | mentioned yesterday, Mr. Elliott was
not looking for witnesses to disclose their
legal strategy. He simply wanted to know
whether the Government of Nunavut is
arguing that its capacity problems are
caused by a lack of federal funding.

Ms. Wasson, you have the floor.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
would like to start off this morning by
thanking the Committee for bearing with
me yesterday. It was my first appearance
and | am not making excuses, but it is
obvious | was a bit nervous. So | would
like to thank all of you, and I will try to
speak slowly and calm down today. Thank
you.

In response to the questions, yesterday |
had deferred the question regarding the ads
for the positions of the Assistant Deputy
Minister of Health and Social Services and
the comptroller general in regard to the
reference to priority hiring. | wanted to
actually take the opportunity to follow up
on these ads.

| have confirmed that the ADM of Health
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and Social Services is posted on the GN
website and it does contain the reference to
priority hiring. The ad for the comptroller
general is now presently, this morning, on
my desk. It does contain the reference and
it will be posted on the website very
shortly. It did contain the reference when it
came to my desk; it just hadn’t been posted
yet.

As for the southern ads, the request has
been made for the priority hiring to be
included. It was an oversight and again,
apologies from the Department of HR for
that. These positions definitely come under
the priority hiring and priority hiring will
be applied.

The second question was why we were
using an outside agency for these particular
positions. As noted in the Auditor
General’s report, there are key positions
that we are having difficulty filling and
these are two very important positions with
the government. It is very unusual for us to
use a recruitment agency, but in these
particular key positions we felt that it
would be worthwhile for us to use an
outside agency.

The second question in regard to re-
profiling vacancies, | wanted to clarify that
the question was not in relation to the
formal job evaluation process and which
we also refer to re-profiling the positions.
In the context, re-profiling for job
evaluation is a change in the job
description requiring a re-evaluation of the
position, but not normally requiring a
change in incumbents. | wanted to ensure
that your question was not in relation
specifically to that element of job
evaluations.

In answering the question, because HR
realizes that we do have priorities with
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positions within the government, we want
to ensure that the vacant positions are
analyzed carefully to see if there is a way
that the positions can be changed slightly
or re-profiled to help focus on our
employees and work on service delivery
and reduce the duplication of services. This
was the approach that we have seen
referred to in the press release.

The third question in regard to NTI, | have
conferred with my colleague in the
Department of Justice and have been
informed that the matter is before the
courts and that I’m not to make any
comments on the subject. Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Are
there any comments on the answers? Mr.
Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | would like to express my
appreciation for the follow-up and for
providing the information to the Members.

However, the question which | raised
yesterday was with respect to why these
positions were not advertised locally either
through the newspaper or via the local
radio. The only reference to these positions
was an advertisement of the particular
positions in a southern newspaper and they
were administered by a southern agency.

It seems that for these positions, the
government is leery of hiring any
Nunavummiut and is only interested in
southern hires, and are depriving our fellow
residents an opportunity to apply for these
positions. It seems to be a deliberate and
purposeful exclusion of our fellow
residents as they seemingly cannot apply
for these positions. That is why we tried to
get to the root of the issue by checking the
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processes followed by the HR agencies.

There is more than one avenue to check
into this matter, but in our search, these
positions never even popped up. Why was
this undertaken in this manner? This
question still has not been answered to
date, at least insofar as | can read into the
Deputy Minister’s statement. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman It
was my understanding on the file that | was
looking at that they were to be advertised
in the newspapers and the radio stations in
the North. If they have not been, then it’s
my apologies from the departments and |
will certainly follow up and ensure that
happens. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Are
there any other comments? Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
terms of my question, the Deputy Minister
was instructed not to comment on that. Is
that correct? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. That’s
what she said. Go ahead, Ms. Wasson, if
you wanted to comment on that.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That was my instruction not to comment.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Was that instruction by your Minister as
Minister of Human Resources or was that
instruction by the Premier as the
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representative of the whole government?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That’s the instruction from legal counsel.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Are
there any other... ? If not, we will go back
to the paragraph-by-paragraph [review],
and we’re on paragraphs 1 to 14. When we
left off yesterday, it was still Mr. Elliott
there.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
think that when we left off yesterday, | was
asking questions about the $2 million that
was transferred from the Department of
Finance in types of training that were
offered. My understanding of the money
that was transferred was supposed to be in
response to one of the Auditor General’s
audits of the financial management of the
Government of Nunavut.

When Minister Peterson was speaking
about the money in the program, | thought
that it was for training and to remedy some
of the problems in terms of having
beneficiaries as chartered accountants and
training towards that. She was saying that
the money was never really intended for
correcting that problem within the
government. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m going to refer the question to my
director of training and development.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ab/RPCSe (OLANJO): Sdy2al™ MC A<,
M D<Re,

Bshe ONNNYO): Sdyeal™® Ab/RPBCS, Cbdd
N> NNJC DSbD>YDILE*L Lebonde,

AP/ RQU>CSe: PP Codd @ “cPCoNC
PreParodclLeNJs, 1< 14-1¢ M™C
AL Jc DD,

A< ONMNJ): AP<ENSe ALA GEC
$2,000,000 CAPI< obNC>c >IC
PaPbcnrbd ot JA®INNc>Ged

DA% PPNCHPLC. <AL DP/P>LobdC
CAPIS Pa Pyt obNseC>*LC
CLLLSePLYoY SN D>< Pa DYrnpbdo
SPrSPabbr.

Lo MC ADN® DSbP>NSb®N“ 5 CAdo™L
Pa Dot $2,000,000-c°
Ac®o<PNPND>a AP DG 5<bbebd<d
0a.CHCPILIC Aceo<d®NC>Y*a Sa<SLC
db>es PP

gsepera AJNPY DG AN DM q bd. Sdyeal™.

Ab/RPCSe (OLANJC): Sdh*alC MC Adc<C,
M D<Re,

BAshe ONNNYO): Sdyeal® AbYRPACS. Coa
AA®IE Ao %I nACN® of
DegSedNNo<Sed. Sd-*al™®.




Chairman: Go ahead.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The $2 million training fund that | spoke
about yesterday, and | can repeat it a little
bit; that $1 million was towards specialized
training and $1 million to program
development.

The Department of Finance, to my
understanding, still has their internship
program and an HR strategy that they have
spoken about. The program development is
issued... they have proposed some training
in their department that addresses those and
we have worked with them. They continue
to submit proposals and we continue to
work with them to deliver some courses
that are more towards professional
development. We are open, though, to
assisting them if they wish, but I cannot
speak on behalf of the Department of
Finance. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Kolola. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Maybe | misunderstood the Minister in the
conversations that we had in the House
about the funding and how this money was
going to help some of the deficiencies that
the Auditor General’s office actually saw.
To me, when it was promoted to us as
Regular Members, it was a wonderful
training opportunity to fill some of those
gaps that they were having within the
Department of Finance to be able to get
more Inuit employees who were moving

up.

I guess the expression that you were using
yesterday, ladder, or wrung training, or
something like that, going up a ladder to
becoming chartered accountants to fix that
sort of problem that continues or that
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capacity gap that is there. Maybe it was
possibly my understanding or maybe | need
to ask the Minister more.

So what you’re saying is the funding is
actually a pot of money that went from the
Department of Finance over to HR, and
then whoever wants to within the
department, | guess the Government of
Nunavut, they can put in funding proposals
to do training where they feel it’s
appropriate. Is that correct? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, that is correct. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
next question is in regard to some of the
talk we have been doing in terms of skills
that employees have and also education
levels. | know | have asked this question
before, but | was wondering if there was
any further movement on it in terms of
working with other departments within the
Government of Nunavut.

Nunavut Arctic College has their Prior
Learning Assessment Recognition Program
and | know, again, quite a few dollars, a lot
of time and energy have been invested in
that. It’s an amazing program. I’m just
wondering if you could give us an update
and tell us how that is being used.

One of the things | see is there are a lot of
Government of Nunavut employees who
have a lot of training. They do workshops
and they do bits and pieces of training, and
it doesn’t come to a certificate of some
sort. They have lots of skills, but there is no

Lo 0a2C LRLAGC DPSPN®
ASBECSa<dD® 5N o PbdE Ac®o <o
ACSbA5bG>LE, HAC ®? sdvy*al™.

A/ <XPCSe OLNNYO): sdy*al™® MC A<,
M DN,

Bhe OLNNNJO): Sdbeal™® AP/ RDCS, A
CALASDSe, Syl Ab/RPCSe,

AP/ <XPCSe OLNNJO): sdy*al®. MC Adc<C,

Adcdc OLANY): gy al® Ab/RUCE,
AAPINNLILYSPa. ACHLPNACSIC DGIse
Acto<Sa*NCo IR *onrn.db®eC*L.
AA®INN PG H®CS PY<do XM a®
LR]LEIE Acn\*M*o

Aba A bCCIND>DY,

Lo PCO®RNT Pabbat
NoRA/LI®Cc® CL°do™L ID%INo®.
<A D ADDONE.

0a.2¢ LRLLI*N*0¢ Aba AFPIC Abd
LAY Ao NC>edrsbeCs*LC,
Ac®o<dP*a®INts bNLPOYbC®oNe,
a a APdCCHEC 5N .




way of packaging that into delivering that
and showing it to potential employers or
having movement up a ladder in the types
of training that they are having.

If you could possibly give us an update on
how you are working with the Nunavut
Arctic College to implement that. Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
will defer the question to my training and
development director. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Okay. Go ahead, Ms. Kolola.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
am aware of the Prior Learning Assessment
Program with the Nunavut Arctic College.
We have been working with them from the
beginning to see if it is a tool that we can
use within our own government. We have
promoted it within our own GN employees
who would like to participate. We
encourage them just like any other
professional development.

We would like to go a step further and see
if we can condense it to meet the working
requirement of employees but still be able
to create a portfolio. That is in the early
stages right now because, if I understand,
the [prior] learning assessment portfolio is
an actual program that takes a period of
time.

We have seen that the results of it do have
a good foundation for taking their skills
and identifying their skills. Also we found
that it’s very good in building self-esteem
and confidence, so it’s certainly something
that we would like to work on. Thank you,
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Mr. Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that answer. The program
usually takes a week, but then again, to me,
in terms of having an employee who is
more confident in their skill sets and their
abilities, | don’t think a week is a lot of
time, especially when you’re talking about
retention. That’s sort of leading into my
next question.

I know that when the GN did the whole
report card exercise, there were a lot of
comments from people within the
community about job orientation in the
GN. What type of orientation do you have
for new employees to the GN in terms of
trying to help with types of retention for
the employees? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m going to defer the question to the
training and development director. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Go ahead, Ms. Kolola.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
terms of employee orientation, we do have
a program in our department where staff
hold employee orientation sessions, a day-
long session, and guests are invited from
across the government to make
presentations and give information about
their particular department. That has been
successful.

We encourage departments to have
orientation packages for new employees
and we are working on an employee
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orientation framework that will help them
with the setting up of these packages. A lot
of departments do have their own
orientation set up. The employee
orientation session is a general information
session, but it’s a very good introduction to
the government. We try to make it
informative so that the new employees
know where they can get the information.

This summer we launched an employee
orientation website from the Department of
Human Resources and it’s available in four
languages. So that is a new tool that we are
using with the technology, but we still
continue to do the face-to-face [meetings].
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Aupaluktug.
Mr. Aupaluktuq: I didn’t have a question.
Chairman: Sorry. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good morning everyone. Yesterday we
were told about this entity or committee, if
you will, the Building Capacity Committee.
To me this is fairly new; I have not heard
much about it. My question subsequently
from that is: what are the goals and
objectives of this Building Capacity
Committee?

We all seem to understand and reflective of
the population here in Nunavut, we all
committed to this Article 24, reflective of
the Inuit here, which is, according to
numbers that were given, 85 percent. So |
would like to know what are the goals and
objectives of this Building Capacity
Committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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I’m going to refer this question to Aluki
Rojas, who has been sitting on the Building
Capacity Committee since its installation.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Go ahead.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ullaakkut, everyone. The Building
Capacity Committee, as Mr. Ningark has
stated, is fairly new. It has been set up for a
little over a year now. As Ms. Wasson
noted yesterday, she listed all of the
departments that were represented on this
committee and it’s made up of deputy
ministers.

As the committee name states, it’s focusing
on building capacity. It focuses on two
things: building capacity within the
territorial public service as well as building
capacity outside the public service. As |
stated, it’s still fairly new. In this first year,
we had decided that we would focus mostly
on the public service. That would be our
first priority at this time with our capacity
challenges. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, [Ms. Rojas]. Mr.
Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The 2008-09 Public Service Annual Report
cover is very reflective of where we are
coming from. We have the Inuksuk on it,
we have drying fish, muskox, and a
traditional tent. In the message of the Hon.
Minister for public service, and | will quote
from this, “... the guiding principles of
Pinasuaqtavut, and our commitment to
Article 23 of the Nunavut Land Claims
Agreement.”

I’m hoping that this Building Capacity
Committee also reflects what the Minister
has stated in his message to the people of
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Nunavut. Will the department’s head at the
witness table give this message to the
Building Capacity Committee to not forget
the commitment of the Minister to Article
23 in their deliberation of trying to build
capacity in the system and also to ensure
that there are beneficiaries in the system?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. I think that was
just a comment, but if you want to respond
to that, Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The committee certainly is dedicated to
Article 23. The objectives of the committee
actually state within, “With particular
emphasis on achieving a representative
public service,” within the objectives of
that committee are stated. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) I have
been trying to follow what has been
answered and questions asked.

In looking at the filings that were provided
on what this government has done, |
haven’t seen any new programs that would
effectively increase capacity for Inuit to be
employed in the government.

It’s nice to have a committee, but what will
you actually do? What programs will you
introduce that will have an impact in
increasing Inuit employment within our
government? We can try and pretend it’s a
federal problem, but at the same time, we
do have an obligation to do our part to try
and increase the numbers.

What new programs are there? | have
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looked at the filing and | see Akitsiraq |
Law Program. Well, that program was
done in the last government and it’s no
longer being put in place by this current
government. So what programs are you
planning to do that we can look forward to
so that we can increase our numbers and
meet our obligations under Article 23
where we can? (interpretation) Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The director of training and development
will respond to the question. Thank you,

Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Kolola.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
From the Department of Human Resources,
we have benefited very much from the
establishment of the training fund. We had
some programs developed but did not have
the funding in place to deliver [them].

So in 2009-2010 and again in 2010-11, we
have accessed the training fund to deliver
occupational training programs, which are
programs targeted at positions found in all
departments. For 2009-2010, we delivered
the HR program for positions that handle
HR duties in departments, like coordinators
and assistants. We also delivered the
administrative program for individuals in
administration and supervisory
development. Those were the three
occupational training programs that we
delivered because we were able to access
the training fund’s program development
side.

The benefit in this and reporting to the
Building Capacity [Committee] is that they
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have also identified other occupations that
they would like us to develop and deliver. |
believe that once this skills analysis or gap
analysis is gathered, we will able to see
where the vacancies are, where the skills
are needed, and access the training fund
and create training programs or expand
existing ones.

If I can | was going to talk more about the
Sivuligtiksat Internship Program later on in
the Auditor General’s report, but I think
that is a perfect example of a training
program created to fill gaps identified in
the occupational category of directors,
managers, and specialized positions. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your
response. It is becoming quite obvious that
Inuit are falling further behind. With regard
to these new positions, one cannot ascertain
what level Inuit are at within the public
service. | wonder which other avenues we
may have with regard to the matter,
especially when we want to see more
improvements in the process.

If we are not even keeping up with the
creation of these new positions, the levels
of Inuit employees will continue to
deteriorate and we are being left behind. |
wonder how we can come up with good
news stories since this is an area we can
make improvements in. We seem to be
falling behind, so | wonder how we can
make this process better. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Through the reorganization of our
department we will be designating ten
positions specifically to meet on a regular
basis and to be dedicated towards Inuit
employment. Through that plan, it is our
objective to come up with new ideas and
new ways to find jobs and training and to
get Inuit into positions because it is our
goal to increase the employment of Inuit
within the Government of Nunavut. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Good morning, everybody and
welcome back. | appreciate the follow-up
responses to my colleagues as well as the
Committee here.

My question, Mr. Chairman, is directed to
the Office of the Auditor General. On page
8, item 10, High cost of living, | believe it
is imperative that this question is asked.

Freight costs are extremely high, healthy
foods are not subsidized as much as high
sugar or what are labelled as junk foods
that are easily purchasable by people in
Nunavut rather than healthy foods, and
food mail service is threatened for
individuals under the present concerns.

In your opinion, what must or can be done
to talk with the necessary services for
healthy living for Nunavummiut in order
for Nunavut as a whole to benefit from a
fundamental need, such as access to
healthy food? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you for the question. The issue is
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certainly an important element of the
factors that need to be considered in
relation to staffing positions in Nunavut.

I think that the Member mentioned the
Food Mail Program. When we think about
healthy foods and healthy eating, I think
that that’s a key program in terms of
reducing the cost of getting healthy foods
into remote communities. | think we’re all
aware and certainly from my previous
career, I’m certainly aware of the difficulty
in getting perishable goods into very
remote communities.

The Auditor General mentioned yesterday
in response to a good question from Mr.
Elliott that she would hope that we would
have an interest as the Office of the Auditor
General in following up at some point on
the Food Mail Program, and I think that’s
certainly something that we will include in
our future planning. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktug: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Aside from food, here is just an
example just to formulate an image.

A no-name television brand at one of the
local stores was going for $1,700, a 37-inch
LCD TV. I don’t know who can afford that
TV, but if you go online and went to Best
Buy, you can buy a better name product for
a 37-inch for $550. | enquired and it would
cost $140 on postage express post. So for
$750 landed, you’re still saving $1,000 on
a product compared to what is being sold
on the floor. I just want to throw that in as
an example.

Mr. Chairman, that was a comment, but
this question is to the Office of the Auditor
General on page 8, item 12, Low
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graduation rates. Yesterday | mentioned
that education should be the foundation,
fundamental, and core of what is going to
make Nunavut succeed.

It states here halfway through the
paragraph, “In his 2006 report, The
Nunavut Project, Justice Thomas Berger
emphasized that, fundamentally, it is
impossible to consider the objectives of
Article 23 of the Nunavut Land Claims
Agreement without also considering that a
great majority of positions in the public
service require educational qualifications.”
This is along the lines of what my
colleague, Mr. Elliott, was asking under the
difficulties of Article 23 that HR faces in
terms of acquiring qualified people to fill in
these positions.

Now, to continue with the rest of the quote,
it says, “Because of the low number of high
school graduates, departments face the
additional challenge of finding qualified
candidates from Nunavut communities for
positions that require post-secondary
education.”

This fall we graduated 17 students in Baker
Lake, which is the highest number that
we’ve had, and we’re very proud. | was
very honoured to be invited to that.
Hopefully we project to have more this
coming year and it would be a record for
Baker Lake.

In this position, between kindergarten and
grade 12, in your opinion or experience,
Mr. Campbell, what substance is missing in
the quality of education that is producing
few graduates in Nunavut? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Mr. Campbell.
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Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That’s a question that goes to the very core
of this issue. It’s also a question that is
somewhat outside the scope of the audit
work done in this audit, but I will offer
something of a response, if I can.

I think that there have been investments
made by the Government of Nunavut in
education. | think you have seen the
creation of the university graduates
program, the master’s degree program. |
would imagine, not having done an audit
for the Department of Education, the return
on that investment will take some time. |
think that much of the discussion that has
happened here today and yesterday speaks
to addressing the human resource capacity
issue both with some short-term things that
can be fixed today and some longer term
investments that will take some time to
have a return.

On the education, I think that the people in
the Department of Education would be in a
much better place to answer that question. |
would just offer the fact I think the return
on that investment will take some time and
it might be worthwhile for the Committee
to have a discussion with the Department
of Education on what they think the timing
of that would be.

If I may just venture, Mr. Chairman, to
address the comment that the Member
made about the number of graduates in his
community, in this case Baker Lake, and
how to sort of move them into the public
service. Mr. Okalik made, | thought, a very
interesting comment earlier this morning
when he sort of raised a question of how to
make it more exciting and appealing to
Inuit people in Nunavut to actually work in
the Government of Nunavut.

Again it’s another issue in terms of that
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outreach, the marketing of the Government
of Nunavut to make it appealing to Inuit. It
might be a worthwhile question to
government officials to follow on that idea
and ask what they have in mind to try and
make the Government of Nunavut the
employer of choice for Nunavummiut.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. This next comment is directed
towards the witnesses over there from the
Government of Nunavut and also in
compliance with the education
requirements for Nunavummiut.

I think it is imperative, and it is very
critical to use the word imperative, to
develop a strategy to educate parents or
guardians the values and principles of
providing a study environment. I am not
judging parental skills, but | am saying that
our students need the support at home and
the foundation in which they are given the
opportunity to be able to study in a quiet
environment to get the work done.

A student needs at least an hour or hour
and a half study period in order to focus on
their homework and assignments. | would
like to see, with the encouragement of
human resources in partnership with the
Department of Education, a strategy to
emphasize educating guardians and parents
the necessity of being able to provide a
healthy environment for students to be able
to focus on their school work.

I had suggested before in Committee of the
Whole that even a piece of paper is very
effective, even a pamphlet in Inuktitut or
English, just as a guideline to educate and
inform the need for a student to have a
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proper study environment.

I just encourage the Department of
Education to work hand in hand with the
Department of Human Resources to
develop a strategy to encourage completing
high quality graduates who can move on to
post-secondary [education] and then gain
these positions. That was just a comment.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Without losing sight of career training
plans within the public service and the
business action plan of the Government of
Nunavut, paragraph 12 of the Auditor
General’s report notes that “... a great
majority of positions in the public service
require educational qualifications.”

Madam Deputy Minister, your department
has been engaged in a government-wide
review of job descriptions for a number of
years.

Thank you. My microphone is speaking for
me.

The objective of this exercise has been to
lower artificial barriers to Inuit
employment. Based on your department’s
work to date, approximately what
percentage of the government’s jobs
genuinely require post-secondary
educational qualifications in order for them
to be successfully performed? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |

will defer that question to later in the
session when | can obtain that information.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. |
have nobody else on my list here, so we
will move on to the next one, Planning,
paragraphs 15 to 35. Any questions? Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This question is to the Auditor General’s
staff. Paragraph 16 of your report notes that
you “expected each of the five selected
departments to collect and analyze
appropriate information related to its
current and its estimated future workforce
and related gaps.” Do the departments that
you examined currently have enough
human resource capacity to collect and
analyze this information? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to defer that question to
Michelle Salvail, if I can, please.

Chairman: Go ahead, Ms. Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Do
they have the capacity, I think, is an
important question. | think that yesterday
Ms. Wasson indicated that it’s something
that she thinks she can do. She recognized
that all departments do have challenges
when it comes to gathering information and
analyzing it. She mentioned that she would
try her best to do that and maybe she can
comment a bit further as to what she would
do specifically to collect this information.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My next question will be for the staff of the
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human resource department. As it is noted
in the Auditor General’s report,
“departments must first have an
understanding of their current workforce,
vacant positions, and related gaps in skills
and experience.” How is your department
going to ensure that all departments collect
and analyze the appropriate information
related to the workforce gaps in a manner
that will allow for it to be assessed on a
government-wide basis? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Through our HR strategy we will develop a
cohesive relationship with the departments.
Again | refer to the Building Capacity
Committee. The HR strategy will be
developed through that committee and
through the support of the Deputy
Ministers, so we will have everybody on
board and approving the strategy as we go.

Right now we do have a lead group also
that the deputies have; I call them my
brainpower group that makes
recommendations to the deputy ministers
committee. Each one of these brain people,
there are people from the IT community,
people from policy, people from all over
that make recommendations as to how we
can ensure that we’re working together and
working towards the same goals. It’s going
to certainly be a challenge, but we have a
great team. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson.
Anybody else? If not, we will move on to
the next paragraphs. We will move on to
Staffing, paragraphs 39 to 62. Are there
any questions? We will give you a chance
to think about it there and then get back to
you. Mr. Aupaluktug.
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Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. In reviewing the Auditor
General’s report, my question is directed
towards human resources.

On paragraph 22 of the Auditor General’s
report, it lists four factors that GN officials,
“...perceive to affect the ability to hire
qualified staff.” And the four factors
identified are uncompetitive compensation
packages, lack of staff housing,
decentralization of positions, and lack of
qualified beneficiaries with the levels of
education required for positions.

My question, Mr. Chairman, is: how is the
GN prioritizing these four factors in its
action plan to improve human resource
capacity? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We work towards prioritizing by gathering
the data through our database that | spoke
about yesterday. Once we have a few
months of data in that database, we will be
able to target what the key issues are in
regard to what is holding things up but also
why people aren’t accepting job offers,
whether it’s because of the salary, or
because of the housing, or exactly what.
We will then prioritize our Human
Resource Strategy based on the data that
we gathered. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: | believe all Canadians,
but particularly mostly Nunavummiut,
deserve quality of service so that we can
have quality of life and that essentially
touches every aspect in every core of
Nunavut. Fundamentally, as Canadians, we
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have to be sensitive about our Charter and
Constitution. People have to have a right to
access to a roof over their heads, access to
freedom of expression, access to healthy
foods, and access to an education.

I think we should fully identify and quickly
implement... | guess what I’m trying to
say, Mr. Chairman, is we need to ensure
that people’s fundamental needs are met.
This is what we’re here to do, to try to
provide that and try to break down barriers.
What | wanted to say as well is that
Nunavummiut do have that right. Basically
they’re applying for employment. They
also have that right to apply for
employment and gain livelihood.

I’m glad to see that the department is
looking at trying to provide mechanisms to
ensure that these obstacles and barriers are
knocked down, and | support you on that. |
would like to see it all implemented as
soon as possible, but with it being quite
difficult to view that from a government
perspective, | want to ask the same
question, Mr. Chairman, directed towards
the Office of the Auditor General.

In regard to the comment | made on
paragraph 22 and these factors, given these
examples, what course of action would you
suggest for the Government of Nunavut?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for the question. The four issues
that we cited, the perception of
uncompetitive compensation, lack of
available housing, decentralization, and a
lack of qualified beneficiaries, are views
that officials in the government shared with
us, in their view, as being barriers.
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What we would like to see is some real
analysis to determine the extent to which
these truly are barriers. We talked
elsewhere in the report about the absence
of studies on whether or not compensation
really is a barrier and if so, how big a
barrier is that. So there needs to be better
data and I think the Deputy Minister has
just mentioned that that’s going to be their
starting point to determine that.

The Deputy Minister also talked earlier
about prioritizing, and I think that
prioritizing the positions to be filled is
something that was mentioned yesterday
that I think the department is going to do
and we would encourage that.

I’ll just give you an example, Mr.
Chairman, about housing, as we did hear
stories whereby a process would begin. We
all know that it takes, on average, 318 days
and there seems to be an inability to
identify the house in the beginning and
make sure that it’s there at the end of the
318 days.

So there are a large number of staffing
actions that don’t get successfully filled
and that’s an issue people need to really
pay attention to. You can go through the
staffing action and go through the whole
process, get to the end of the 318 days, and
that house is then gone, taken by another
department.

So if there was any way to prioritize the
jobs and say, “We’re going to keep a
house,” because this job is so important,
we’re going to keep the house if there is a
house available at the beginning of the
process to try and make sure that that house
is there at the end of the process, | think,
would be something that would help those
numbers of uncompleted or unsuccessful
staffing actions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. My question is directed now
towards human resources. The Tamapta
Action Plan states that the government will
conduct a functional review to “... identify
strengths and weaknesses that exist in
decentralized offices.” As well, “Attention
will be given to filling vacancies in
specialized and professional positions...”

What is the status of this functional review
and what role is the Department of Human
Resources playing? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
understand that the Department of
Executive is taking the lead on the
decentralization review. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Go ahead. Sorry.
Who were you directing that to?

Ms. Wasson: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. |
will obtain the answer to that question and

get back to you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I guess I’ll just ask this as a
formality for the record. What is the
government’s actual strategy for filling
vacancies in specialized and professional
[positions] in decentralized communities?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’ll just need one moment. I’ll defer that
question, Mr. Chairman, to Aluki Rojas.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Go ahead.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.,
Aupaluktuq asked who is doing the review
in terms of decentralized positions, |
believe. So | just want to clarify that the
Department of Executive and
Intergovernmental Affairs is taking the lead
on that, and that’s the executive side that is
taking the lead. The Department of Human
Resources, along with all of the other
departments across the government, will be
providing information about decentralized
positions and if they’ve had any difficulties
in filling them. Unfortunately I don’t know
what the status of that review is currently.

In terms of recruiting and staffing for
decentralized positions, the Department of
Human Resources uses the same process
that it uses for headquarter positions in
filling positions. They advertise through
northern newspapers, radio, as well as the
website. We have three regional offices in
Cambridge Bay, Rankin Inlet, and Igloolik
that do the staffing process for the regions.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My question is for the Auditor General’s
staff. | know we talked about this issue in
the opening comments, but | just have a
further question.

On paragraph 42 of the report, it states that
more than half of the 318-day period
elapsed before the hiring departments
asked the Department of Human Resources
to get involved. In your discussions with
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the department that you examined, did you
identify any reasons why, on average, it
took 181 days before the hiring
departments asked the Department of
Human Resources to get involved? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Campobell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m going to ask Madam Salvail to answer
that question, if I may. Thank you.

Chairman: Go ahead, Ms. Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
paragraph 43, | think we say that the
department provided us several reasons. |
think that as a first point I should say that
we did not find any analysis that they had
done to explain that 181 days.

When we do talk to them either here in
Igaluit or in the regions, most of the time
they told us that they tried to fill the
position through other means; casual
employment, transfer assignments, or
direct appointments. So they basically tried
all of the other staffing mechanisms and
when that wouldn’t work or wouldn’t work
for a long period of time, then they would
turn to the Department of HR to start a
staffing action.

Some other time they told us, as Mr.
Campbell just mentioned, that they kind of
knew that no housing was available at the
time. So there was no need for them to start
putting the paperwork together because
they knew that any candidate that they
might have, especially if they would come
from outside Nunavut, wouldn’t have a
place to stay. So they would just wait until
maybe a house was becoming available to
start doing the paperwork. Thank you, Mr.
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Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: I thank her for the answer
on the question. On a different question, on
[paragraph] 47 of the report, it states that
“... almost half of the staffing competitions
undertaken by the five departments in the
2007-08 and 2008-09 fiscal years were
unsuccessful.” Based on what you
observed in your audits of the federal
government and the governments of the
NWT and the Yukon, how does this
success rate compare to other jurisdictions?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms.
Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We haven’t been able to find data coming
from the other territories, so we are not
aware of the success rates either in the
territories or elsewhere in Canada.

Chairman: Thank you. We will take 15-
minute break right now. When we come
back, we will be starting with Mr. Ningark.

>>Committee recessed at 9:58 and
resumed at 10:16

Chairman: We’re going to go back to
Planning. | don’t think we went through all
of the paragraphs there. I’ll just give you a
second if any Members have any questions
on that section and if not, then we will
move back to where we were. Thank you.
Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
With your indulgence, Mr. Chairman, |
would like to go back to paragraph 24.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We talk about
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different things and one thing that we also
talk about is lack of qualifications in
human resources in hiring and recruiting.
We want to make sure that we have short-
term, medium- and long-term plans.

Paragraph 24 of the Auditor General’s
report provides some recommendations
regarding the need to know the extent of
shortages in human resource capacity.
Having said that, Mr. Chairman, my
question to the Hon. Madam Deputy
Minister is: does the GN have enough
resources to implement these
recommendations under paragraph 24?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our plan is to set up task groups, as |
referred to yesterday. Resources are
certainly an ongoing challenge. Through
our task groups, we will have a divided
responsibility over the departments and
throughout HR to take on this challenge.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
question is directed towards Ms. Wasson
and the Government of Nunavut. We keep
talking about capacity and what the
government is going to be doing to rectify
some of the changes. Some of the replies
that we have been getting are that there will
be different meetings and things will be
monitored. | am being extra cautious in
terms of some of the questions.

I remember revisiting some of the housing;
the Nunavut Housing Trust and some of the
audits from the last time the Auditor
General was here, where we were given
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assurances that different things will be put
in place, things will be monitored, different
plans will be established, and different
parameters will be set up. We go away
from our meeting feeling good that we
asked all of the right questions and
everything is in the hands of the
government or the corporation to follow
through, and then you find out that there is
overspending. We’re constantly asking
about what happened.

Again, we have been talking all morning
about the 85 percent Inuit employment and
to me that is one of the key factors in terms
of having a representative workforce. The
public service needs to be at 85 [percent].
We have already missed the 2010 deadline
in terms of the number of Inuit who were
supposed to be in the workforce.

Now, if I understand correctly what you
have been saying, it’s 2015, actually, when
your department will know a better figure
as to what percentage we will reach in 2020
once all of these studies, strategies, and
plans are put into place. Again that is five
years to wait to find out in 2015 that
“Oops, we made a calculation error.

Human capacity is not up to what it was.
This plan didn’t happen.”

How often will you monitor the success of
the programs that you’re setting up of the
strategies that are coming in? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A
formal review, of course, would be through
the Public Service Act on an annual basis,
but informally it would quarterly, keeping
in mind that the Building Capacity
Committee expects regular monthly or has
regular monthly discussions on how we’re
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moving forward. Informally, through our
work plans, we will be meeting with people
and be updating those work plans at least
quarterly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Will you also be setting up indicators?
What will set off red flags in your
department to make you realize, “Oops,
we’ve overshot this” or “We’re way ahead
on this,” in terms of what will signify there
is a problem or what will raise flags?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, we will be setting up indicators for
each of the priorities that go into our
planning. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Will these be tabled in the House? How
will Regular Members be informed as to
what... ? Again going back to the Nunavut
Housing Trust and the problems we’ve had
with that, I think one of our responsibilities
as Regular Members is to hold the
government accountable for where they
spend money and what they’re doing
within their programs. At times, | sort of
felt I was either misinformed as to what
was happening with the money that was
being spent with the Nunavut Housing
Trust or not informed.

How will we be informed, again, to do our
role as Regular MLAs to hold the
government accountable for what they’re
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doing? How will we be informed to know
what indicators there are and to know the
progress that is being made by your
department? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Regular Members will be informed through
the public service annual report. Our plans
and priorities will be part of the business
planning process. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
These are the business plans that we see
annually when we’re doing the operations
and maintenance of the main estimates.
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Just a moment, please.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My apologies; |
do wear two hearing aides that don’t pick
up every now and then, so | apologize for
not hearing your entire question. Yes, it
will be through the main estimates. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Again, we have been talking a lot about the
85 percent Inuit employment in terms of a
representative government.

One of the questions | was hoping to pose
to the Office of the Auditor General was...
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. To me, I think one of the things | have
been saying all along is that it seems like
the Government of Nunavut was formed,
we are a new territory, we are setting all of
these different departments into action,
there is so much that has to be done that
sometimes it seems like we do play catch-
up. We are still a very young territory, so
10 years is not a long time in terms of
where we are going. | know other
governments have priority hiring for
attracting women in the workforce, you
have different specific jobs like having
male participation in jobs, such as nursing,
and whatnot.

My question to the Auditor General in
terms of... . It seems like, to me, what | am
saying is we need more time. What we
want to do is we don’t want to put people
in positions that aren’t ready. We want an
employee who feels good about what they
are doing and feels confident in what they
are doing. In other jurisdictions, has the
Auditor General’s office done studies
where information has come up in terms of
what other provinces and territories do and
how successful they are? Sometimes, |
think, it’s like a 3 percent increase in
women in the workforce, and things like
that. So, compared to other jurisdictions,
are we doing pretty good in terms of the
level that we are at? Is it just that we need
more time? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Mr.
Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | think we mentioned in response to an
earlier question that we hadn’t, there was a
question yesterday, | believe, about the
magnitude of the human resource challenge
in Nunavut in relation to other
jurisdictions. I think we had answered that
question along the lines that we hadn’t
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done that kind of analysis, but certainly,
compared to the other territories, the
challenge appears to be much greater in
Nunavut.

The question included a comment about
time, and | think that Mr. Elliott mentioned
gender priority hiring in other jurisdictions
and | haven’t studied this in history, but
certainly there was a time when women
were not going to university or not
completing high school in the same
numbers as males and females were not
attending university and completing
university in the same numbers as males.
So back then when people wanted more
equality in society, it still took some time.

The solution was clearly in societal
changes, attitudes, affirmative action and
priority hiring, and those things, but also
the solution was in people of that group
finishing high school with the same quality
as males and finishing university with the
same quality of education as males. I think,
in the south, that is clearly the case. | know
in our office a number of years ago, maybe
15 or 20 years ago, we were very focused
in some of those gender issues and now we
are not because | think that the vast
majority of students going through
university and studying accounting now are
female, so we do not have to focus on that
so much.

I think, in terms of Nunavut, as we
mentioned earlier, a lot of the professional
levels will take time, and you know, it’s
high school, it’s university, and it’s joining
professional organizations and the likes
that will see the solution at that level.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Elliott.
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Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On
page 11 in paragraph 22, the report refers
to the lack of qualified beneficiaries with
the levels of education required for the
positions. My question is directed towards
the Office of the Auditor General. Would
you agree that the Department of Education
needs to play a vital role in developing and
implementing strategies to address the gaps
in the long term? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Mr.
Campobell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Broadly speaking; certainly, definitely yes.
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Would you have any suggestions that you
could lend in terms of how you would see
this work or is this something that they
need to sort of hash out on their own?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Mr.
Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think all of those issues are interrelated. |
think that the analysis that we are
recommending that the Government of
Nunavut conduct to get better information
will yield better information as to what
positions are remaining empty for a long
time, what are the skill sets that are needed.
I think that information probably, I would
hope, would be very useful not only to the
Department of Education but also to
Nunavut Arctic College.

One of the things | would say, just a
personal comment, is that there is no
shortage of people working together, |
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think, in Nunavut. When we were
completing this audit, we organized and
asked for a meeting with Deputy Ministers.
We got five or six of them, | believe, in the
room at one time dealing with the issues in
this chapter, even though some of the
issues were specific only to certain
departments. | would just say that that’s
very difficult to do in the federal
government. We had no problem attracting
Deputy Ministers to come to a meeting to
deal with those issues.

I think that once the data is available and
better information is available, | think that
people will be willing to get together and
work together on it. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that answer. | wanted to
redirect a similar question to both the
Department of Education’s Acting DM,
who is here with us today, and also to the
Department of Human Resources.

The audit that has been done within the
past year was tabled in the House in March,
so both departments have had a lot of time
to look at it and have had time to meet and
discuss different options. What | would like
to know is if each of the Deputy Ministers
could give us some insight as to how you
see working together on making this
connection, like the Auditor General’s
office was saying, in terms of bringing
education and human resources to the table
to work together to solve this problem.

So maybe if we start with human resources
and then go to the Department of
Education. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.

ArAC®NSC bNLSbNNPCD>®/LyDC Mo CAC
DY *NC. CocL 0, 6-5%6C bN**L*LC
bNL*bNN g KN®PL®IHe P®IC, Ac_*NC
AL ACDPSIC DE*LLOI®N 5.
AbD>E P P>PNS PE+PCIJC [oCAC
DM bNLSbNNLLLENEJE.

Led<l <A<LC DA%a >oseh>e<C
INBLNNSS b RP> HNe
SboIPNNPL>Y D¢ CAbD 0L, Sdval™.

AP/ <XPCSe OLNNYO): Sdy*al™® MC bt><.
MC Adc<C.

A€ ONMNUC): sdyeal® AL,
Lo sdyal™ PBLAC. Cbd<NA%Q AS
AA®PINNPILMHPb Ao <D nnbd® of.
Ao eI nnbde [oCP< D* <ot <L
A®ba AL nAPdC D*N<oF.

QGJ % CL . CLSbYLI®/DSgse
AZASC>CDSLE LYN 5 \SePCD< 5o
LcLeD>sé ¢,
SPrSPabCPP 5P Ser LI, CALC
JANSLY*L To CAC D> Pe

QO ADLa SLHLE Sbose Cbd<

AStba AbnYDo<SLML*Ne >dd

AT <D nAPdC ASba ALeDnrbde >
bNL=5N® SboIPNHbP*a So<SLC.

A®ba AL oS¢ DE*LIC, Sdybeal™.

AP/ <XPCSe OLNNYO): sd*al™® MC A<,

39




Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m bringing attention to the action plan
that’s been developed. This action plan was
developed as a joint project, with all
Deputy Ministers having input, and
actually once we drafted it, we circulated it,
and the deputies kept having their input
until they were happy. To me, it’s a joint
partnership between the deputies at this
point and not just a human resource action
plan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Wasson.
Maybe if we can ask the same question to
the Deputy Minister of Education.

Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
am not sure | could add much more to that
because it is a working relationship and a
partnership that both the departments of
Human Resources and Education continue
to have and work toward. It’s the same
within our own school systems, the K-12
system, and working with Nunavut Arctic
College in ensuring that our graduates have
the skill sets that are required in the K-12,
whether it’s for university preparation,
college preparation, or job-ready. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for those answers. Again if both
the Acting Deputy Minister and the Deputy
Minister could answer. To make the action
plan work and to continue to grow in the
partnership, what do your departments
need?

It’s interesting how something as shocking
as what’s happened with the Nunavut
Housing Trust, and as bad as it is, it’s nice
we’re getting the houses out of it, but it has
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actually helped me to ask questions a bit
better in terms of knowing and asking
government departments what they need to
make sure things happen in the way that
they have to happen, with the realization of
knowing that we don’t have a huge pile of
money sitting somewhere to implement
programs and training.

But what do both of your departments need
to sort of make sure that the education
works, that the human resources
department works, and we work towards
making sure that we have a representative
government? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What do we need? Well, firstly | can
always say we need more money and that
just seems like it could be endless, but we
do need continued support for our
programs and services. The only thing that
I’m targeting that you may see me come
and ask money for is for the Recruitment
and Retention Strategy. At this point, we
don’t know what that will look like. We
have developed a business case, but it will
be expanded upon when we finish our
Human Resource Strategy. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Geikie.

Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
For education, there are a couple of things
that we see as beneficial to the direction
that we’re going, especially in our K-12.
Most importantly it is to continue to have
the support, as what we have been hearing
here today, for our students and for our
staff in our school system and encouraging
our youth to attend with the message that it
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is not okay to be away and that they should
be in school so that our staff have an
opportunity to work with them on a regular
basis, a daily basis.

The government has given the Department
of Education some significant resources for
K-12 and we’re most appreciative of that.
As the DM of HR has indicated, we can
always use more but we’re thankful and
we’re working hard to ensure those
resources that have been given are utilized
to the best of our ability for our children.
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Geikie. Mr.
Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you. My question is
to the Auditor General’s office.

Mr. Chairman, I think that we have to
recognize that we have this immediate
problem that needs immediate
responsibility in the system in order to
address the things that we want to achieve
within our term.

This is for the Office of the Auditor
General. In September 2009, during the
review of your 2009 report on financial
management practices in the Government
of Nunavut, we had some discussions on
the need for more education and long-term
planning in order to fill professional
positions. It was stated that human
resources needs are not going to be
resolved by a two-month training program.

My question to the Office of the Auditor
General is this: given the reality, how can
the government best address each
immediate responsibility to have a
competent workforce that can effectively
deliver programs and services to the
public? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Mr.
Campobell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Again | thank the Member for the question.
We have talked here today about some of
the longer term issues, education, and all of
those things, but the Member raises a
guestion about what can be done now.

I think it’s quite clear that the whole
problem cannot be resolved only on short-
term fixes, but there are some that we
believe can help move things along. In the
chapter, we talk about faster staffing and
we hear stories about people who either
apply for jobs in the GN and it takes 318
days to get resolved or they go and do
something else. Speeding up the staffing, |
think, would be something that would be
more helpful to solve part of the problem.

I think that we also talked in the chapter
about training and there are some training
programs that we talked about, most of
which are properly funded and yet, in some
of them, people are not completing these
training programs. So people are entering
them, for some reason they’re not
completing them, and I think that the
government needs to know why that’s the
case. If people are taking the time to join a
program, they clearly want to do that
program and better themselves and get
more skills, and if it’s not happening, the
government needs to know quickly why
it’s not happening and try and make that
fixed.

We also talked about using the human
resource tools. A performance appraisal is
something that all employees should get. A
performance appraisal allows for the
discussion between the manager and
employee, and allows part of that
discussion to be about development: what
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are the skills, what are the training we do
with our staff all the time, twice a year,
what are the skills that you need, what is
the training that you need, how is your
career progressing, what can we do to help
the employee. That is something that the
government could and should do right
away. Exit interviews, analyzing that
information from exit reviews: why do
people leave the GN?

If I may, Mr. Chairman, there are a couple
of others, so I’ll just get on my hobby horse
here. When you look at page 15 of the
report, Exhibit 5, if we look at the
occupational categories, there have been
discussion about the professional category
and what a high mountain that is to climb
and how long it will take people to get up
there. When | look at that categorization,
there is middle management and senior
management.

I would presume that the government
would hope to fill the senior management
positions with people flowing through the
middle management positions. So | would
suggest that there would be a different
strategy specific to that. | would presume
that the middle managers already have a
significant responsibility, the skills,
expertise, and knowledge. So there’s an
area where training and development, |
think, could probably have a bigger impact
just in trying to move people between these
two categories.

Again, | think Mr. Okalik might have been
out of the room when | made an earlier
comment that Mr. Okalik had made, |
referred to it, that the government could
take steps to make it more exciting and
appealing for Nunavummiut to work in the
government and take steps to try and make
the Government of Nunavut the employer
of choice. There are things that the
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government could do, I think, in the short
term to try and achieve that.

So that was rather a long-winded way, but |
said all of those things that | wanted to say,
so | thank you for the question.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you. I would now
like to direct my question to the Madam
Deputy Minister of Human Resources and
she can designate the response to the other
department if she wishes to.

Why aren’t we completing the training?
You may have the experience of when a
student goes out for training and just
halfway through that, they just quit. So
why aren’t we completing these very
essential training in order for our people to
get a job in the system? What seems to be
the problem here? Why aren’t they
completing their training? As we heard
from the Office of the Auditor General,
many aren’t completing their training.
What is the problem? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
can only answer on behalf of the
Department of Human Resources and the
training programs that we provide. We
have started to collect the data as it is
unclear as to exactly why people are
dropping out of various training programs,
but we hope to have some information in
our data collection that will be able to
provide us with those answers. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Aupaluktug.
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Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | am pleased to see that Mr.
Geikie is up there.

In reference to the Auditor General’s
comment in regard to page 15... forgive
me. On paragraph 33, the last paragraph
states, “The educational requirements for
most professional positions are
significantly higher than those required for
the administration category. Increasing the
number of beneficiaries in the professional
category will depend on increasing the
number who successfully complete post-
secondary education; this education
requirement takes longer to achieve than
the education requirements of some other
categories.”

Mr. Campbell also pointed out in Exhibit 5,
as you can note down there in the
professional category, in March 31, 2000,
you had 26 percent of beneficiaries
employed and to this day, March 31, 2009,
it’s still 26 percent with a 0 percent
increase.

As | said earlier, education is the
fundamental basis of what we need to do in
order to move on. We need to strengthen
education support and make homes aware
about the necessity of having time, space,
and responsibility of getting students to
complete homework. I think that, as a
government and the Department of
Education, we can assist a plan at home
and provide environments for students to
complete their study.

One example, if I may, Mr. Chairman, for
those who do try hard; | can give you an
example. Two years ago, a young mother
was attending classes in an Amauti while
she was parenting. She did graduate and
that was very inspirational. | remember
telling her at the time that she is actually a
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hero and actually a role model, and that
was very surprising to her. But at the
moment of her celebration, I guess she was
overwhelmed with emotion, realizing how
much she had to sacrifice and she did it.
This year, we had another young mother
return back to school and she’s got three
children. She singled out her family and
extended family members and relations for
providing child care. | am very proud of
these two who graduated.

But I think another avenue that the
Department of Education may assist in, Mr.
Chairman, is that we might need to
enhance daycare support as well. I am glad
that FANS increased their living allowance
for students, but the fact of the reality is
most books in university, post-secondary,
even used, can cost anywhere from $1,400
to over $2,000. To me and in my own
personal experience, that caused a lot of
difficulties, not able to obtain the quality
books. We had to share books; we were up
most of the night and couldn’t stay focused
the next day. That was an obstacle.

Getting back to daycare support, | think
that we need to clearly identify who is
responsible and who takes a role in
providing daycares, and | think that is
something that can be entertained in the
next coming legislation. | believe we need
to enhance support in daycare, identify who
operates and maintains the expansions of
daycares and availabilities. Some young
parents and even single fathers stressed that
if they had daycare availability, they could
a lot better.

We also need to provide more cultural
support for those who are attending or will
be attending post-secondary [institutions]. |
think we need to prepare them for the
cross-cultural differences of moving south.
One very good example is Nunavut
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Sivuniksavut. It does an exceptional job.

I just wanted to comment that we also have
to focus on, as we are, what are the
obstacles and barriers. | think one of the
crucial ones is we have to enhance
homework support. We also have to
enhance daycare support for parents, young
parents, and single parents. | just want to
provide that as a comment, Mr. Chairman.

If I may ask the Government of Nunavut
there with human resources, if I may go
back to a question that | had earlier if | can
get some additional clarification on how
the government will approach the challenge
of... . Just bear with me. This is in
reference to paragraph 22 in the Auditor
General’s report. The GN’s Tamapta
Action Plan says that “Attention will be
given to filling vacancies in specialized
positions...” in decentralized communities.

I wanted additional clarification, Mr.
Chairman, on how the GN will approach
this challenge. For example, there are over
a dozen vacancies in Nunavut Housing
Corporation’s Arviat office. These
vacancies probably may have impacted the
NHC’s problems. | am not targeting that
specific office, but this is an example as to
how we can try to clarify what these
obstacles are. So if | may get a clarification
on how the GN is approaching this
challenge of the vacancies that are in place
in Nunavut. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The decentralize review, | understand, will
be looking at some of these and | don’t
have the detailed information on that. Also,
our HR analysis of vacancies is where
human resources will be involved with
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providing information, gathering the data,
and looking at exactly what it available and
what we need. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you. I won’t take
too much more time on this issue, but |
believe our colleagues here as well as the
Committee, | think we know for a fact that
we will be providing additional questions
for clarification and follow-ups in the
coming session of the Legislative
Assembly. So, with that, I’ll leave it at this.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug. |
think that was just a comment.

I do have one question here on this because
you have one of your witnesses there who
is a DM there for EIA. | wonder if I could
ask Ms. Rojas this question. Thank you.

One of my colleagues asked about the
status of the GN’s functional review of
decentralization, which is being led by the
Department of EIA. One of the witnesses,
well, that’s yourself as the DM for the
department, can you give us a sense of how
this review is proceeding? Thank you. Ms.
Rojas.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As |
indicated earlier, the lead is the executive
side of Executive and Intergovernmental
Affairs. As the DM of Intergovernmental
Affairs, | have not been involved in what
the steps are being taken. I’m afraid that
I’m not able to provide any insight into
what’s happening on that front. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Ugyuk.
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Ms. Ugyuk (interpretation): Thank you. |
have wanted to comment on this matter for
a while now. First of all, while we’re
reviewing the human resources department,
when you represent your communities in
Nunavut, most of us do so, with the
perspective of improving our children’s
future. 1 am grateful that we are able to
debate this matter, which we have reviewed
over the last couple of days, because of our
concerns about our fellow Inuit’s future
and we have to try and provide the best
possible opportunities we can in the future.
We have to ensure that the decisions we
make today do not severely impact their
future.

My question is on paragraph 37 of the
written statements. It talks about the
teachers who get burned out and it also
states that the senior managers who were
surveyed had agreed to this review. They
try to resolve the issues faced by the
students, but they get rebuffed. In 20009,
during the review period, it states within
the report on funding issues that students
going to Arctic College rarely get adequate
funding and many students are
overwhelmed and stressed out from the
lack of adequate funding. When the
funding is inadequate there is not much a
student can do to make ends meet. | think
we all know this fact.

Therefore I would like to ask the people
across the room what they have done in
regard to this issue. The departments do not
focus on an individual worker who is
working extremely hard. How do you feel
that this situation could be resolved? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you to the Member for the question.
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We had talked earlier about the importance
of the training programs and when they’re
in place, it’s important that they work well,
and when students make commitments to
join a program, it’s important that they get
the support that they need.

There was one case, and I’m going to ask
Madam Salvail to give more details, but
there certainly was one case where it
wasn’t a question of dollars, it was a
question of having the people available to
support the students. But in terms of the
more detail, Mr. Chairman, | would ask
Ms. Salvail to answer that.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Ms.
Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, in paragraph 67, we do mention that
there is some program where, as Mr.
Campbell said, it was not a question of
dollars but maybe of people available to
provide the training or to oversee the good
functioning of the training. In paragraph
67, we give the example of the Financial
Internship Program, where the overseeing
of the internship program was given to
someone who already had a full-time job
doing something else. So, for that person, it
was kind of difficult to, at the same time,
do their regular job and also oversee the
students who were in the internship
program.

We have talked to participants of various
programs and some told us that they may
not have received the support that they
would have liked. 1 think it’s not because
of that particular individual, I think it was
in general. In some cases, we found that,
and | guess with the example of the internal
internship at CGS, they just couldn’t find a
mentor to oversee the program because you
need people to take the training but you
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need people to train them. Within the
department, because of the lack of capacity,
they couldn’t find people to train them. So
people were interested in taking the
training but they lacked people to do the
training.

In all of that, I think that the point is that
yes, it’s both a question of dollars but it’s
also a question of having people there to
oversee these programs. We’re not sure; as
you know, an analysis hasn’t been done as
to why people don’t complete the program,
but certainly it is one of the reasons. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Ugyuk.

Ms. Ugyuk: My next question is on
paragraph 38 to the Auditor General. Your
report states, “... that departments spent 37
percent to 112 percent of their unused
payroll budget on people working on
contract, overtime, and as casuals to do the
work of vacant positions.” Compared to
what you observe in your audits of the
federal government and the governments of
the NWT and the Yukon, are these
spending patterns unigue in Canada? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for the question. As we
mentioned previously in the hearing, we
haven’t done a real detailed analysis of
those comparisons, but we haven’t seen, in
any other jurisdiction that we audit, that
human resource capacity issue. It doesn’t
appear as big an issue elsewhere as it does
in Nunavut. In Nunavut, it seems to be a
very big problem.

What you see there with those spending
patterns is a consequence of that, where
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people don’t have the positions staffed,
they’ve got the payroll dollars available,
and they try to get the work through
overtime and through the use of casuals
and temporary staff and contracts, and the
likes. So we haven’t done the analysis, but
the human resource challenge is bigger in
Nunavut than we have seen elsewhere and
those spending patterns are the
consequence of that. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) We
appear to be in the no. 33 area, so | will ask
my question.

On page 15, no. 33, the Auditor General
explains the figures that were in place
during the 10 years for the various levels of
our government, and it appears that the
senior management and middle
management categories for the number of
beneficiaries had gone up 5 percent and 8
percent respectively.

Since the release of that report, we have
before us also the report on Inuit
employment for up to March 31, 2010, and
on the senior management and middle
management categories, the percentages
have gone down on the number of Inuit
employed at that level. So my question to
the Department of Human Resources is:
what happened? Were Inuit terminated?
How many and why? (interpretation)
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There are a number of reasons, and | don’t
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have the specifics available. Some chose to
move on, some moved to other positions,
but I do not have the breakdown of exactly
who has moved to what positions. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you.
(interpretation ends) It would be nice to get
an idea of why. Under no. 34 of the
Auditor General’s report, these positions
are very important as feeders to the senior
level of our government. So, if these
figures are going down, we should have an
idea of what is happening. Why are they
being fired, if they have been fired, and
why are they moving on?

I recall that this was an issue for some
time, and | would like to know what is
happening. |1 would like to see these figures
going back up instead of going down. If we
are going to increase Inuit employment
numbers, this is the one level where we can
have a significant impact and influence
within the government as Inuit.
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms.
Wasson, maybe you can make sure that
you get that information to all of the
Members.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
can make a comment that we always strive
for a responsible, representative
government. It certainly is our mandate and
we strive to do that. There are very specific
reasons why people move on. Sometimes
people fill out exit surveys and they
provide that information, but we do not
make that information public as it is
personal information.
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What we are doing, though, is to move
forward and develop a plan that will
actually look at the specific positions,
develop clear ladders so that we can move
people up through, look at the occupational
categories, and use our learning assessment
plans so that we’re developing learning
plans, so that we can move people up
because it’s our goal to increase
representativeness and certainly not to do
decrease it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) | don’t
know how we are supposed to improve this
if we have no idea why these numbers are
going down. It’s not very reassuring when
the Deputy Minister can’t explain what is
happening. So | would like an answer on
this matter so we can do something about
it, perhaps. (interpretation) Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We are endeavouring to collect better
information and encouraging people to fill
out exit interview surveys so that we can
provide that information to the deputies in
the departments so that they can come up
with good solutions to increase those
numbers because it is a concern of
everyone. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
question is directed towards the Office of
the Auditor General. On page 17,
paragraph 37, the report refers to a burnout
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of staff and states that among officials who
were interviewed, “... a general consensus
that little time is available to focus on
strategic issues.”

During our review last year in 2009, the
report on the financial management
practices of the Government of Nunavut,
we had some discussion about staff
burnout. Given your recommendations,
they seem to focus a lot on strategic issues,
and given that little time is available for
GN staff to actually focus on strategic
issues, what are you thoughts on how to
deal with this challenge? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. That
was sort of brought up, but I guess it’s
another question there for you, Ms.
Wasson. Sorry, that’s for you, Mr.
Campobell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Elliott is right; we focused many of our
recommendations on strategic issues,
forward-looking issues, and important
analysis that would underpin further
actions for the government.

There have been several questions by
Members to the Deputy Minister of Human
Resources about the department’s ability to
follow through with quite an extensive and
ambitious action plan. I would offer two
thoughts to the Committee, Mr. Chairman.
One is certainly that the department would
want to prioritize those issues and pick on
the ones that they think they are more
likely to get some success on in the shorter
term, and | think the Deputy Minister has
already alluded to that being part of their
focus.

If I may, Mr. Chairman, one option may be
for your Committee to... . In reflection of
the fact that so many Members have asked
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about how the plans are going to be
monitored, your Committee may wish to
ask for updates on the implementation of
the action plan. The Deputy Minister has
tabled an action plan with dates and times.
It may be the will of your Committee to ask
periodically for an update of how that plan
has been implemented.

That might allay concerns of Members that
things might get off track and it will be too
late before you found out about it. So the
Committee would have an opportunity to
see how the plan is being implemented and,
if there are red flags appearing, the
Committee could then decide where to go
from there. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for allowing me to ask a similar
question. I guess Mr. Campbell picked up
on what | was asking, and I still don’t feel
comfortable with some of the answers we
have been given in terms of our assurances.

Again, we ask our Government of Nunavut
employees to sometimes do the job of one,
or two, or sometimes even three employees
because there are vacant positions. Now
we’re going to be asking them, on top of
that, to take the extra time to do the
strategic planning. I know there are a lot of
dedicated Government of Nunavut workers
out there. | wouldn’t want them to be burnt
out. | thank you in terms of priorities for us
and priorities for the government to work
towards.

My next question is directed towards the
Government of Nunavut. In February of
20009, the cabinet announced that the GN
would be increasing capacity in its offices
by changing the hiring policy. What
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specific changes have been made to the
GN’s hiring policy since that time? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
view of my short term in this position, | am
going to defer the question to Aluki Rojas
for a response.

Chairman: Go ahead, Ms. Rojas.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
think what Mr. Elliott is referring to is the
news release where it’s the staffing
processes or the policies. I think it’s the
staffing processes, and it was out of a
cabinet retreat in Cape Dorset, if | recall.
What happened after that retreat was that
the direct appointment directive in the
Human Resource Manual was reviewed
and there were some revisions made to that
and approved by cabinet.

In addition, we started monitoring how
casuals were hired and making small
changes that we hoped would make a
difference in the length of time it takes to
hire casuals, instead of going to Job
Evaluation. For example, for all casual
staffing actions, it would go straight to
Staffing because Job Evaluation would,
most of the time, maintain the same job
evaluation numbers.

In addition, the Department of Human
Resources undertook a review of the
organization with the mind to streamline
and ensure there was less duplication of
any processes. | think, since Louise has
been the Deputy Minister of the
department, that reorganization has been
approved and the department will be
working towards implementing that. It’s
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been a slow process, but I think we will be
seeing more improvements over the
coming months. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That was a wording problem with me. It’s
actually in the press release, it says hiring
processes. | do remember it was in regard
to... I think it came up with a lot of
questions we were asking in terms of
casual staffing actions that were repeated.
There were also some issues about direct
appointments. The GN Priority Hiring
Policy expired in March of 2010. As of
today, is the policy still current and, if not,
when will it be revised and updated? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The policy is presently being updated. We
have done a number of consultations.
Further consultations will be expected to
occur in the fall of 2010. We hope to have
it updated in the spring of 2011. Thank you
very much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Although we focus heavily on Article 23,
Mr. Chairman, we have to remind
ourselves that we are in our mandate in the
public government. We also have to focus
on the reality and the goals that we have in
our mandate in a unique jurisdiction.

This is for Madam Deputy Minister of
Human Resources. The Inuit Employment
Plan statistics produced by your department
indicates that as of March 2010, the GN
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had 3,859 total positions, of those 1,512
positions were filled by beneficiaries. This
is only 39 percent of the total number of
current positions.

In order to achieve an 85 percent Inuit
workforce by the year 2020, the
government would need to hire
approximately 1,768 new Inuit employees
in less than ten years and not lose a single
one of its existing employees. My question,
Mr. Chairman, is: how is the government
going to actually achieve this? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Inuit Employment Plan will certainly
be part of our Human Resource Strategic
Plan. It will be a very key part of that plan.

The reorganization of the Department of
Human Resources also focuses on Inuit
employment in that we have identified ten
positions, which is an increase from our
previous number of four positions that
focus on Inuit employment. The positions
will be responsible for ensuring that all
divisions of the department are responsible
for Inuit employment, not just specifically
the individuals who are responsible for
Inuit employment in their job but that
everybody will be discussing Inuit
employment in their staff meetings. We all
have people designated to go out to
departments.

We will be looking at new ideas and new
reasons and working with the other
departments to hopefully increase our Inuit
employment numbers. Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Ningark.
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Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Can you share with us what those new
ideas may be? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: I’m afraid not at this time
and | apologize for that. The functional
review has just been completed and
approved this past week, so the group has
not had an opportunity to meet and get
going on their planning. Certainly they will
be brainstorming ideas and working with
our co-partners in the department to come
up with new ideas because it’s obvious we
do need some new ideas and strategies.

Although, I can add to that. One of the
issues that we have discussed through the
deputy level is the career development and
the laddering that we need to be able to
move people through the system. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. |
have a question for you. Will you provide a
copy of the functional review to us, yes or
no?

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’ll get my Minister to commit to providing
a copy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My question to the Madam Deputy
Minister is: can you assure the existing
employees and this Committee, comes one
day when we have full potential 85 percent
Inuit employment is filled, that existing
employees that we have now and the next
10 years, if they don’t move on, will be
given their positions unless they’re willing
to move on? Can you assure the employees
that we have today that they will not lose
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their employment because of what we are
trying to achieve today? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Are you referring to the functional review
or losing employment in general? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Can you educate me? | know what the
functional is; it’s something that is
performing, active, and achieving things.
What sort of functional review are you
indicating to me? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
am referring to the functional review and
the reorganization of the Department of
Human Resources. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | don’t have any
other names on here, so we will go back to
where we were earlier. Staffing, paragraphs
39 to 62. Any questions? Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
just have a quick question regarding
September 15 of this year, a news release
that the cabinet met to set up a roadmap for
the future. On the fourth paragraph, it says,
“The Cabinet agreed to cut down on
duplication in the Government of
Nunavut...” What exactly does this mean?
Does it mean that they will be cutting
positions within the government if they feel
that a position is not needed? Thank you,
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Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
apologize for the delay. | am deferring the
question to Deputy Aluki Rojas.

Chairman: Ms. Rojas.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
terms of the cabinet retreat, we weren’t
privy to what was discussed, so we don’t
know exactly what that refers to. However,
with the Department of Human Resources,
when we take that press release and
understand duplication, what we take is
that we will be reviewing our staffing
process to ensure there is no duplication.

Like I said earlier, for example, when one
department submits a casual staffing
action, instead of going to Job Evaluation,
where the evaluation would already be
known for a position, it would go straight
to Staffing. So | can provide that as an
example of some of the duplication we
would be trying to reduce to ensure that the
staffing process was lessened in terms of
the time period.

In terms of eliminating positions, at this
point, there are no discussions or any
thought on trying to eliminate positions.
We’re just looking at how we can
streamline our processes. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | would just like to
clarify what you just mentioned. You are
trying to tell us that the cabinet doesn’t
communicate with the different
departments on this issue. Ms. Rojas.

Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
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guess | put myself into that situation. I can
confirm that cabinet does communicate
with Deputy Ministers. For this recent
retreat, however, we have not received
anything in terms of paper yet. That will
probably come forward as a regular process
through the deputy ministers committee.
We’re going to be receiving that. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | guess it’s been
over a year, so it takes a while to get the
information. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The news release | was referring to was
September of this year, so it’s not that long
ago. How long before the Deputy Ministers
have this review done and have something
prepared to present to the rest of us? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m not sure of your question actually. Can
you elaborate? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
In the response that was given, it said that
after the Ministers did a retreat that the
Deputy Ministers have not yet gotten
together and formulated a plan in regard to
the question | asked about the cabinet
agreeing to cut down on duplication in the
Government of Nunavut. How long will the
process take before they do start meeting
and get this process moving? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms.
Wasson.
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As soon as the information is received. The
Deputy Ministers do meet on a regular
basis, so we will be discussing it as soon as

we receive the information. Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I do have a question to pose for
the human resources guests here at the
table. Mr. Chairman, just bear with me. |
want look over the appropriate section and
the paragraph in the Auditor General’s
report. The question | do have is in relation
to the court filing related to NTI’s lawsuit
against the federal government.

The GN stated that its Article 23 training
initiatives, including the Summer Student
Employment Equity Program, and what
was discussed earlier was the AKkitsiraq
Law Program, the Sivuligtiksat Internship
Program, the Financial Internship Program,
the Adult Learning Strategy, the Nunavut
Community Skills Information System, the
Inuit Education Leadership Program, the
Inuit Studies Program, the Nunavut
Teachers Program, the Nunavut Nursing
Program, as well the new Inuit Language
Protect Act, and the Young Parents Stay
Learning Initiative. | want to ask which of
these programs have been the most
successful in producing graduates who
have gone on to work for the GN and
which have been the least successful.
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
regret that | would like to have that
information available, but | do not have
those statistics immediately available.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Paragraphs 53 to 55, which are on page 22
of the Auditor General’s report, refer to
problems that arise when permanent
positions are filled on a temporary basis.
My question to the Department of Human
Resources is: what is your department
doing to reduce the practice of filling
permanent positions on a temporary basis?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There are several initiatives that we have in
place. One is the review of the direct
appointment process and looking at all the
casuals department from department to see
who we actually could recommend for a
direct appointment. That is one of the
processes that we have in place. Providing
regular reports to the Deputy Ministers on
the number of casuals that they have and
what positions that those individuals are in;
transfer assignments; reviewing the transfer
assignment process; we do have a plan to
review the process and ensure that the
process has been properly applied; and
looking at the rules for transfer
assignments to see if we need to change
those rules and tighten up the transfer
assignment process. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that response. You
mentioned about direct appointments.
Sometimes when people are directly
appointed, it goes from a casual staffing
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action to a direct appointment. Who makes
the decision for direct appointments? Is it
someone within human resources or is it a
higher level than that? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Cabinet makes the decisions on direct
appointments. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Going on in the same sort of area on page
23, paragraph 61, it talks about that, in 23
of the direct appointments that were
examined, the individuals would not have
passed the initial screening had the process
been competitive. If some candidates
would not pass the initial screening in a
competitive process, why are they being
directly appointed to positions in the public
service? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Often these individuals have sat in a casual
position for a very long time. They do not
have the education and qualifications to
pass the screening criteria, but individuals
who have supervised them realized that
they are able to do the job without the
qualifications. So a direct appointment
does come in handy for those types of
situations. I also would like to bring to your
attention that for those situations, we also
use training and learning plans to close the
skill gaps in some situations. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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You mentioned that sometimes when
people are direct appointed, they have been
in casual positions for a long period of
time. We were assured in the House last
year that this policy of repeatedly issuing
casual staffing actions to employees was
not going to be continued. Are you saying
that your department still does this? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That’s why we’re in the process of
reviewing who is in casual staffing
positions. There are various reasons why
departments do hire casuals and why they
do need casuals. A review of this process
will give us some good data. We’re hoping
to know exactly how long people are
staying and what types of positions they are
staying in so that we can come up with
some resolutions to the problems. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
You had mentioned a few things in terms
of the question I’m about to ask. If
someone is directly appointed and they do
not have the skill sets that normally would
put them in that position, can you detail
what that employee would receive in terms
of assistance?

One of the things we have been talking
about for the last couple of days is the
capacity within the GN to perform certain
functions. If you are hiring an employee
who maybe does not have the
qualifications and they have been in the
position for a long time, obviously they
have the ability to perform, but they
probably would like the skills to be able to
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perform better.

What does the department do to ensure that
that employee is either monitored, or
mentored, or provided with the skills to
keep the position? Part of the reason | am
asking that is a few years ago, one of the
departments that’s responsible for finding
out and was concerned about the retention
of Inuit employees was going around to the
communities asking why sometimes
employees bounce from job to job.

One of the things that | had heard in one of
the conversations was the fact that they just
felt like they were sinking in the position
that they had. Obviously they were given a
position, again someone very capable of
doing the work and works towards filling
the 85 percent of the Inuit workforce that
we’re working for, but constantly felt like
they were going to a job where they didn’t
have the skills or the training that they
needed.

We don’t want to set people up to fail. So
once we directly appoint someone, what
does the department do to ensure, that
when we retain that employee and train that
employee, that they feel confident in the
job that they are doing? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The nine departments have a responsibility
to provide support, but the Department of
Human Resources is responsible for
actually providing the tools. We do have
some tools that we do provide, such as our
learning plans, our training programs, and
also our performance appraisal process. So
the departments can come to the
Department of HR and ask for these types
of support for their employees. Thank you,
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Mr. Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So
this is something that your department
follows up on. There was the example of
23 direct appointments within the Auditor
General’s report. Does your department
actually follow up to see that they are being
trained properly or is it left up to the
department to follow up? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Not at this time, the Department of HR
does not have a process to follow up.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Is
this something in the review that they are
doing with the changing of the policies and
whatnot? Is this something that your
department would commit to looking into
in terms of making sure that adequate
training is provided for the employees?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It’s part of our Human Resource Strategy.
We certainly want to include what we are
doing for employees during their
employment, and training would definitely
be a part of that strategy. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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For a day and a half, we have talked about
strategizing, reviewing, and so on. | think
that this is coming to a point where | feel
that we need something tangible;
something that you can enhance,
implement, you can be critical of,
something we can debate in the House.

From that, Mr. Chairman, the GN response
to paragraph 35 of the Auditor General’s
report states that the human resources
department will “undertake a detailed
analysis of the Nunavut labour force data
provided by the Nunavut Bureau of
Statistics. The analysis of this data will
determine availability, interest, and level of
preparedness of Inuit for government
employment.” My question, Mr. Chairman,
is: when will this analysis be completed
and will the results of this analysis be
tabled in the Legislative Assembly? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The analysis will be completed in March,
2015 according to our action plan. But |
draw your attention to the fact that we will
prioritize the key positions and the Inuit
Employment Strategy, and we will be able
to provide data on those categories prior to
2015. 2015 is our final target date for
looking at all positions throughout the
government. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: So | guess it’s going to come
to the point where our successors are the
ones who are going to have to analyze that
if it’s going to take until 2015. Go ahead,
Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you. | guess it’s up to
the Minister of the department of the day,
but will the Madam Deputy Minister be
able to tell me that this analysis report will
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be tabled in the House? Will this document
be tabled in the House? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It
is premature to commit at this time. | will
have to discuss that with my Minister.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Will you tell the Hon. Minister that it’s
being requested by the Committee of this
government? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, | will certainly convey that message.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktug: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I jumped ahead on my last
question. | believe it should have been
directed in the area of training and
development. The reason why | had asked
that earlier was, while on the subject of
staffing qualifications, I want to ask the
Office of the Auditor General.

In paragraph 61, the report states that, in
relation to the 23 direct appointments that
you examined, the candidate met some or
most of the skills and knowledge
requirements of the position but that those
candidates would not have passed the
initial screening had the process been
competitive. Did the GN provide you with
an explanation as to why these direct
appointments were actually made given
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that the individuals did not meet all of the
skills and knowledge requirements for the
positions to which they were appointed?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to ask Ms. Salvail to answer
that question for me. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, we haven’t discussed the individual
cases with the department. | think what is
important to note is that, in the file, we
didn’t see any indication. For example, as it
was discussed, we didn’t see any plans in
the file for these employees to receive
further training, so we don’t know if that
was actually provided or not. We did not
see much in the file in that regard. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktug: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The reason why | had to ask that
was because many Nunavummiut are
coming forward and asking how certain
individuals gain employment while having
less skills than others who would have
liked to have applied. The same sentiment
complaint is no postings or job
advertisements. This is a real issue that is
constantly raised.

In relation to the question | had asked with
the Office of the Auditor General, | want to
pose the same question with human
resources. If some candidates would not
pass the initial screening in the competitive
process, why are they being directly
appointed to positions in the public
service? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktug.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
would like to say that we are making some
progress in that area. The line departments
do make the recommendations, but what
the Department of Human Resources is
doing in line with the Auditor General’s
recommendations is to ensure that all of the
documentation is attached to do an
assessment that would be similar to a
screening process so that we can ensure
that the skills and abilities are closer to
what is required to a position. If it’s very
close and this person is able to do the job,
then we will be recommending that there
be a learning plan or a training plan
attached to ensure that the gaps are closed.

The direct appointment process also now
requires that the job be advertised prior to
direct appointments as another positive
move forward for the direct appointment
process. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Aupaluktug.

Mr. Aupaluktug: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. As well as a follow up to that,
on paragraph 62 of the report, the
department’s response was, “Departments
will be tasked to ensure that all necessary
documentation required under the
Appointment without Competition
directive is provided to Department of
Human Resources before any assessment
work begins.” Why haven’t departments
been required to do this until now? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
guess | can use the excuse that | have not
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been there, so | haven’t looked back to see
exactly why the information... I do know
that there has been an informal analysis
that occurred with the direct appointment
process. The department is recommending
that they felt these people were the best
people for the position. Certainly we
recognize the gaps and are moving forward
on improving the process. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson.
We’re going to break for lunch now and
when we return, Mr. Ningark will be the
first on the list here. | ask all of the
Members to be back here at 1:30 and
resume the hearing at 1:30. Thank you.

>>Committee recessed at 11:45 and
resumed at 13:31

Chairman: | would like to welcome
everybody back to the hearing. There was a
little typo error originally there. In the first
section, it should have been from paragraph
15 to 38. I’ll give Members a chance to ask
question on that section if they have any
before we proceed with 39 to 62. Has
anybody got any guestions between 15 and
38? Mr. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
think you read my mind; | had questions
pertaining to paragraph 38. There are
vacant positions in the system, but we seem
to have this habit of filling these vacant
positions with casuals and contractors.

My question on paragraph 38 is for the
Office of the Auditor General. Paragraph
38 of your report states that “departments
spent 37 percent to 112 percent of their
unused payroll budgets on people working
on contract, overtime, and as casuals to do
the work of vacant positions.” My question
is, Mr. Chairman: compared to what you
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observe in your audits of the federal
government and the governments of the
NWT and the Yukon, are these spending
patterns unique in Canada? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Mr.
Campobell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for the question. | think we
touched upon this a little earlier, and |
pointed out that we hadn’t done the formal
analysis and comparison between those
figures.

I would say that, from the work that we
have done on other jurisdictions, including
HR audits in the federal government, we
have not seen human resource capacity
concerns as big as they are in Nunavut.
What you see with the numbers that the
Member refers to in paragraph 37 to 38, the
37 percent and the 112 percent, that’s a
consequence of how big the problem is and
managers are trying to fill those empty
positions through the use of casuals and
contractors.

So we haven’t done the formal analysis,
but I think it’s fair to say that the human
resource issue is bigger in Nunavut than
elsewhere. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
recent court filings related to NTI’s lawsuit
against the federal government, and | know
that you had said that lawyers had advised
you not to make comments, the GN’s
statement said that it “took various steps
towards the development of a Labour Force
Analysis.” When did these steps actually
take place and what was accomplished?
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Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m unable to answer that question, so |
will defer the question and seek an answer
for you before the end of this afternoon.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What | would like to do is go back to the
idea of long-term goals. It seems like the
Government of Nunavut, through the
Department of HR, is looking at 2015 as
being a year where certain decisions will be
made, and we will have more information
on what’s happening with some of the
plans and strategies. Could the Deputy
Minister outline what some of the short-
term goals are in terms of leading up to that
date? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Some of the things that we will do in the
short term is we will look at ways that we
will gather and warehouse that information.
We will prioritize positions so that we’re
looking at the key positions, and having the
information on the key positions long
before 2015 date.

We will do things like:
e implementing our Attendance
Management Program;
e doing training on our Performance
Management Program;
e rolling out our Student Support
Training Program.
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Some of these things are actually
Department of Education too:

e offering the pilot School Custodian
Program;

e reviewing and revising the
Language and Culture Certification
Program,;

e offering the University of PEI
Educational Leadership Program;

e providing labour force reports to
GN departments, that as we analyze
the priority positions, we will
provide the labour force reports.

We will also expand our data tracking
system that | talked about before from
vacancies to fill the positions and analyze
that information, and provide those reports
to the departments. We will complete our
process mapping as part of our cleaning up
of the competition process so that we know
what processes need to be improved and
we will develop standards for those
processes.

We will also analyze our information in
regard to why people are actually not
accepting job offers and provide those
monthly reports to departments; providing
and developing eligibility lists so that we
can reduce our time to implement
competitions; and developing registries of
candidates.

Those are some of the things that we plan
to do in the short term. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
You mentioned the priority positions. Has
it been determined what the priority
positions are or will it reflect some of the
stuff from the Auditor General’s report in
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terms of the professional and senior
management level not attaining higher
levels? What I’'m asking is: what criteria
will be used for priority positions? Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
At this time, the criteria have not been
developed. We have started to draft it and it
will be approved by the Building Capacity
Committee so that the deputies will have
input into what positions will be on the
priority list. I envision the priority list will
change as we fill positions and new
positions become priority, but the criteria
will set the precedent as to how we
determine what the priorities are. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So,
if I understand correctly, the government
will sit down and decide which positions
need to be filled right away. Depending on
whatever criteria that is, you will find out
which positions need to be filled. Is that
correct?

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, that’s correct. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Do
you have a number as to how many

positions that would be? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, I do not at this time, but I will indicate
that in the past, without creating criteria,
nursing positions have been a priority and
social work positions have been a priority
in the past. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.
Sorry, Mr. Ningeongan.

Mr. Ningeongan (interpretation): Thank
you Mr. Chairman. With respect to the
questions that have been posed over the last
few days, we have been asking questions
and discussing senior management over the
past two days and the solutions that we
have to find.

I was made aware that the casual staffing
action plan of the Department of Human
Resources has been a source of problems.
Specifically concerns were raised that
positions filled by casuals are extended
with no end in sight. | have seen in my
community how that has caused
exhaustion. | believe we’re not alone in that
and that, in fact, it’s happening all across
Nunavut. Whether it is at health centres or
in home care, workers in those positions
experience a lot of problems because this
situation is not being adequately addressed.

Often it seems these casuals should be
promoted, but they find that their contracts
are continually extended. | want to ask the
Deputy Minister of Human Resources if
this issue will be addressed. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We certainly share your concerns in regard
to the long-term casuals. That is why |
indicated this morning that we will be
reviewing the casuals and providing regular
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reports to the departments as to who is on
the casual list, how long they have been on
the casual list and what they are doing so
that we can try to move some of these
casuals forward. We also have a project to
assist the departments in looking at their
casual process department by department.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr.
Ningeongan.

Mr. Ningeongan (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. We do realize that the
Government of Nunavut is still quite
young, but we also realize that there need
to be improvements. It might seem hard to
do, but there are employees who encounter
those problems because they are part of the
workforce of the territorial government.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That was just a
comment.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My question is on paragraph 49 of the
Auditor General’s report. It states that your
department, Madam Deputy Minister,
“does not currently prioritize staffing
requests from departments.” And that “... it
does not maintain a registry of candidates
who have met the screening criteria in
previous competitions and who could be
contacted to compete for positions
requiring similar skills and qualifications.”
My question is this, Mr. Chairman: what
steps has your department taken to date in
order to prioritize staffing requests and
maintain a registry of candidates? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Again | share your concerns and | have had
conversations with my Deputy Minister
colleagues. We are actually taking some
steps. Some specialty positions are being
prioritized at the request of deputies at the
departments.

In particular, I mentioned the social
workers and also curriculum developers.
We’re using a centralized approach to those
positions so that we can fill them as
quickly as possible. This means that one
staffing consultant throughout the territory
is looking after hiring for these positions.
We hope to make this approach consistent
for other positions so that we can fill the
positions as quickly as possible.

The criteria for the positions that | talked
about before have not been developed, but
we have still pulled some high profile
positions out right away, and the social
workers have been done for some time in
that approach. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. |
guess we’re back to paragraph 39 to 62. Go
ahead, Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My next question is in regard to the
Recruitment and Retention Strategy. The
GN’s response to paragraph 50 and 51 of
the Auditor General’s report states that
“The Department of Human Resources... is
committed to developing a government-
wide Recruitment and Retention Strategy.”
My question is: when will this strategy be
completed and tabled in the Legislative
Assembly? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My apologies for the wait and | have to say
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that I will have to get back to you on that
question. I have set the deadline and
suggested it myself, but I just want to
double-check and make sure that I’m
giving you the correct figure before | make
that statement. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Earlier | was talking about casuals and
contracted positions in the system.
Paragraph 53 to 55 of the Auditor
General’s report refers to the problem that
arises when permanent positions are filled
on a temporary basis. What is your
department doing to reduce the practice of
filling permanent positions on a temporary
basis? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Again | have to say that I share your
concerns and that many of the departments
see the short-term casuals as being a quick
fix, but indeed they perpetuate the problem
in the long term. They think getting
somebody right away certainly fixes their
short-term need, but then what it actually
does is makes it take a longer time.

On the positive side, often when casuals
are in a position, then they are able to get
skills and abilities and later become able to
do those positions. Again, improving staff
turnaround time and education for
understanding is going to be some of the
key things that we need to do to improve
the temporary staffing practices.

Having said that, we have implemented and
improved the direct appointment process
and we also will be reviewing the transfer
assignment process for improvements.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This is only a comment. | would like to
state that. | think it’s very hard to make
commitments when you don’t have
permanent positions filled. It is hard to
follow the strategy. I think that we have a
problem with retaining employees in the
system. That’s part of the problem. I think
we have to find a solution in this category.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Komoartok.

Mr. Komoartok (interpretation): |
apologize for my hoarse voice. | do want to
be understandable, but when I tried to
laugh, my voice cracked.

However, we have been on this issue for
quite a long time. Sometimes it takes a very
long time for the GN to hire an individual.
It sometimes takes about a year to fill up a
vacant position within the government
system. | would like to ask who does the
screening when there is a job opening.
Who scrutinizes their qualifications?

There was an issue in our community that |
have seen. As we know, the government
operates an office in Pangnirtung. | have
seen individuals who have gone through
Nunavut Arctic College to take the social
service program. There were two students
who completed the social service program
and another two who took the IT program.

There were job openings and positions
opened. They would open the job
competition and then they would say that
there were not enough applicants. They
then opened the competition again. There
are four individuals who have gone through
the Arctic College system and earned their
certificates and completed their training.
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Why don’t they include a local person to
do screening? It seems like they just want
to get individuals from outside of our
community. It would be ideal to find out
who does the screening out. Some of the
applicants aren’t even told. They don’t
even thank them for applying for the job. It
seems like they just go by the other way. I
would like to know where the headquarters
is for that screening out, whether it’s in
Igaluit or in Igloolik.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The panels are made up of the departments.
The departments decide who will represent.
In HR, we have a staffing consultant based
on the job description requirements. The
screening criteria are developed based on
the job descriptions. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Komoartok.

Mr. Komoartok (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. | do want to get
clarification and understanding about my
community in Pangnirtung. Do you not
include local people who are familiar with
their neighbours during the screening of
applicants? Because if you do, you would
not be spending so much time trying to fill
these positions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Komoartok.
Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The decision of who sits on the panel from
the local community rests with the
department, whether it’s whatever
department. They decide whether or not the
individual is from that community or from
another community. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Komoartok.

Mr. Komoartok (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. With regard to this
issue, | queried the Premier last year with
regard to senior management positions,
such as the regional director’s position. |
had asked that when the department is
conducting interviews for these types of
positions, there should be a local person on
the committee. The hamlet had also stated
that this was their position, that there ought
to be a local person on the selection
committee. The correspondence outlining
this position was submitted to the
government last year.

We want to have government employees
who can become an integral part of the
community. This is what we would like to
see. We want to have people who are
willing to fully integrate into the
community. That is the reason why we
have requested that a local person be on the
selection committee for any senior level
position so that they comprise part of the
community. In past selections, when the
selection committee had no local
representative, the committee tended to
gloss over the local applicants in favour of
other applicants. This is an issue we would
like to remedy.

We want to see more Inuit working for the
government. There are quite a few Inuit
who qualify for the position, but by virtue
of their being a local person, these
individuals are never selected for an
interview. | just wanted to comment on this
issue we face in our community. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | don’t have
anymore names on it, so we will go to
paragraphs 63 to 71, Training and
development. Mr. Elliott.
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Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On
page 25, there is Exhibit 8, which outlines
some of the different training programs and
internships that are being offered by the
Government of Nunavut. I’m pretty sure it
was answered before. There has been no
follow up by your department as to why
people do not complete these programs. Is
that correct? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
am deferring that question to my director of
training and development. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Kolola.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Exhibit 8 on page 25 shows the various
departments that run programs, their
descriptions and their success rates.

There are five departments and the only
one | can speak for is the Sivuligtiksat
Internship Program. The other departments
keep their stats and information on their
success rates or any details about their
programs. They do not report HR in any of
this. We do assist them when they ask for
assistance in learning plans and other kinds
of tools.

I can speak about the Sivuligtiksat
Internship Program and the rates if you
wish me to, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, if we could find out in terms of why
some of the candidates were not successful
in the program. | believe it was 16 from the
figure here. Thank you.
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Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Kolola.

Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, it is correct that 16 did not complete it
and there are various reasons. Some have
indicated that the position that they had
applied for was not what they had
expected. Others, in the exit interviews,
have indicated that they did not get along
with or clashed with their trainer. Various
others also stated that they were interested
in another position and left for whatever
reason.

In retrospect, the 16 that are not completed,
I am happy to say that since we started the
program and graduates started in 2004, we
do have 15 graduates in the director,
manager, and specialist positions. Of those
15 graduates, 11 are still in their target
positions, and we do still continue with the
program with coordinators. At this time,
we have nine interns in four departments.
We have a call for proposals for
departments to fill the rest of the 16
positions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that information. Actually
that sounds better than what was printed in
here in terms of 11 successful candidates,
so that’s great to see. I’'m glad | asked that
question.

In terms of the response for the other
departments, if some of the changes that
your department is proposing in terms of
making programs better, streamlining
different programs, doing more training,
and whatnot, as part of your strategic plan,
will you be going back to the different
departments and seeing how they’re being
successful with their program and the
training that they are doing as well? Again,
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to me, that is the idea of working together
and sharing success stories to make the
programs better. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Through the Building Capacity Committee,
we will definitely be having that discussion
and that’s part of the strategic planning
process. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | don’t have any
other names on the list. We will move on to
Human resource tools, paragraphs 72 to 77.
Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
know we talked quite a bit about the new
database and we’ve had a lot of references
to some of the new tools that are being
created, but I just had some questions about
the exit survey. The GN has had that
survey for a number of years. Has it or how
long have they been the exit survey for
employees who are leaving their positions?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The exit survey has been conducted for a
number of years. What we are looking at
doing is improving the process. We have
reviewed the questions, we have done an
analysis, and we’re now at the stage that
we need to have some discussions with the
departments.

We’re encouraging the departments to
ensure that individuals do get a copy of the
exit survey. What we need to do is start
getting more of them back and doing an
analysis so that we can be sure that we’re
following up on the reasons why people are
exiting the GN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That was actually the answer to my next
question.

Do you have any statistics on how many
people actually complete the exit survey?
There seems to be a lot of missing
information and gaps as to why people are
leaving their positions. To me, it would be
a good way of tracking and finding out
why there’s movement from position to
position, or why someone is actually
leaving the territory, or why someone is
changing positions. So do you know how
many people have actually completed the
surveys? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The number 368 comes to my mind and |
can’t tell you over what period of time that
is, but I do remember going through some
information just in the past week and that
was the number of exit surveys that were
analyzed. I’m not going to commit to say
that that’s been... | know that certainly
that’s been over a longer period of time,
but I can’t say exactly how long.

What we want to do is actually get more
information and categorize it because it
hasn’t been analyzed and sent out to the
departments in a breakdown way. No, |
can’t provide that breakdown. | know that
you would like to have that and | would
like to have that information too. Thank
you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.

Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Then with that being said, is there
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something new in the policies or the
processes that your department is going to
be implementing that is going to make this
mandatory? Again, if you don’t get the
information collected... it’s nice to have
the survey, but if you’re not having some
type of a policy or process in place to make
sure that it gets completed, filled out, and
processed, there is not much point in doing
it. I’m just curious to find out if there’s
anything new. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms.
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m still anxious.

>>| aughter

I’m holding two pieces of paper here. We
just developed two implementation plans.
One is for the exit interview and a survey
review that lists out what we need to do,
who is responsible for it, and timelines for
completion. The other one is the reporting
protocol for exit interview results so that it,
again, lists out who is responsible and what
need to happen to move that forward.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On paragraph 74 of the Auditor General’s
report, it is recommended that “The
Department of Human Resources should
develop a policy on performance
management that requires department
managers to conduct performance
evaluations of all employees, including
assessments of training needs.” We, as
politicians, are mandated to ensure that we
have a working system. We need the tools
so that we can debate, implement, and
ensure that policies are being followed
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through.

The GN responses to paragraph 74 of the
Auditor General’s report states that, “In the
short term, an appropriate policy of
performance management will be
developed...” My question to the
Department of Human Resources, Mr.
Chairman: will this policy include a
requirement for managers to conduct
performance assessments of their staff, and
when will this policy be completed and
tabled in the Legislative Assembly so that
we can use that tool to ensure that we have
followed through on the implementation?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We do have a performance management
program that has been implemented several
years ago. We have been doing intensive
training throughout the government over
the past year. We offered sessions in
Nunavut, plus teleconference sessions for
the communities. From now until the end
of March, we will visit the regional centres
and offer the training sessions in
probationary performance and in regular
performance management.

The present tool allows for an assessment
over a one-year period for the performance
management, and also has a tool to set
objectives, a tool for quarterly follow-up
with each employee, and also has a training
component section. What we do need to do
is develop a policy that we can bring
forward and recommend that the process be
mandatory. Right now, we are training our
supervisors and making them confident in
meeting with their employees, providing
positive performance, and setting training
goals.
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I will also state that this year, it was
mandatory for all senior managers to
receive a performance review before they
would be considered for a performance or
merit bonus by the government. Thank
you, Mr. Speaker.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: Thank you. I will direct my
question to the Office of the Auditor
General on the policies and tools.

Paragraph 72 of your report states that “We
found that tools and policies are available
to help departments better manage their
human resources, including a performance
management tool kit for managers and a
policy on exit surveys and interviews.”
That’s a preamble. My question, Mr.
Chairman, is: in addition to the
performance management tool kit and a
policy on exit surveys and interviews, what
other tools and policies did you examine?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We did look at the various tools that the
Department of HR had in place or was
offering to departments for their use. We
mentioned some of them in paragraph 73.
We found that they did have a lot of tools;
the Mentorship Handbook, the Learning
Plan Manual, they had guidelines for
performance management, so things were
available.

I think that one of the issues, though, that
we had found in interviewing the people is
that very few performance evaluations
were done of either managers doing it or
employees receiving it. That is where we
had our recommendation. It should be
mandatory because it is not at the moment.
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So there is no lack of tools, but then to
what extent do you use these tools and
apply them consistently, and you make sure
that performance evaluations are done
throughout the GN, that’s our
recommendation. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.

Mr. Ningark: My question, Mr. Chairman,
is to the Department of Human Resources.
Recognizing that we do have tools, and
they are highly recommended by the
Auditor General’s office, are you
encouraging your staff to make sure that
these tools are being utilized in order to
ensure that we have a working system and
follow-ups? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, we are encouraging... . As | said, we
do have a strenuous education training
program to go out and provide training to
all of the departments through this fiscal
year. The tools are also available
electronically for individuals to use. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningeongan.

Mr. Ningeongan: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I would like to ask a question to
the Office of the Auditor General.

Last year in September, during the review
of your 2009 report on the financial
management practices of the Department of
Health and Social Services, we had some
discussions on the very high turnover of
staff. You raised the example that there
have been a total of nine Deputy Ministers
in the Department of Health and Social
Services since 1999. In your discussions
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with the officials of the department that
you examined for this report, did you
discuss the high turnover rate and, if so, did
you identify any underlying causes? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think Ms. Salvail will answer that
question. Thank you.

Chairman: Okay. Ms. Salvail.

Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It’s not just the Department of Health and
Social Services that has a high turnover.
We heard that everywhere in the
government and departments that we
looked at. In terms of high turnover and
why, | think that one of the things that we
mention in the report is that these exit
surveys that the department is conducting
could help in identifying what the causes
are and why people are leaving. Also, it
could identify what can be done to retain
them.

Today we have talked a lot about how we
can attract more people and have people
apply for the various competitions, but it’s
also important to make sure that the
employees that the GN does have stay in
their jobs. If they stay in their jobs, then
that will avoid having to go to more
competitions down the road. So it’s
something that probably the exit surveys
would shed more light on, and we’re happy
to know that there are some things done in
that area. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | think Mr.
Campbell wants to supplement the
question.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Just to add to what Ms. Salvail had said
when she talked about the exit surveys I
really think that the absence of every
employee getting an appraisal is a really
important factor as well.

Very often, when you do those evaluation
appraisal discussions with employees, you
can find out in that discussion that perhaps
the person is not fully happy in their job or
there is something going wrong. Through
those discussions, Mr. Chairman, you can
identify early enough, maybe sometimes
early enough, to make adjustments to
change some factors of the jobs to help
them not resign and go somewhere else. |
think that’s a hugely important tool.

I think, quite honestly, everywhere else in
other jurisdictions and departments that |
have audited, you see this all of the time.
I’ll just talk about the Office of the Auditor
General. If I don’t do the appraisal for all
of my staff twice a year, Sheila Fraser gets
a list of that and she is on the phone. It’s
easy to monitor, it’s easy to manage, and
it’s really important. I’m not quite sure if
the Deputy Minister was really saying that
they are absolutely going to be mandatory
across the government. |1 had comments
about encouraging people and education
and training staff to do them.

I think what’s really vital, and we put this
in a recommendation, is that we would like
to see a policy and performance
management that requires department
managers to conduct the performance
evaluations. | think I just want to stress that
point. It really should be required. It’s not
only an obligation for management but |
think employees deserve to have the
feedback and that discussion at least once
or twice a year. So | just want to emphasize
the fact that they should be required. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningeongan,
you are done? Okay. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | would like to direct my
question to the Auditor General’s office.

On paragraph 79, it states that “The
Department of Education’s planning for
teacher capacity demonstrates the
importance of taking a comprehensive
approach to filling gaps in capacity while
increasing representativeness.” | would like
to ask the Auditor General’s staff if they
have canvassed other departments within
the GN as to whether these practices are
upheld and if these positions that they are
trying to fill could be filled with Inuit
employees. Would this alleviate the
urgency of this matter for the entire
government?

I’m asking this question to Mr. Campbell
and his colleagues. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Mr.
Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: I want to apologize, Mr.
Chairman. I really didn’t get the middle
part of the question, so if the Member
could repeat it, | would appreciate that.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. It states that “The
Department of Education’s planning for
teacher capacity demonstrates the
importance of taking a comprehensive
approach...” Is it possible to have this
applied in all government departments to
increase Inuit employment? That is my
question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Campbell.

Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think much of what the Department of
Education has been able to achieve could
be translated to other parts of government,
perhaps not to all parts of government and
not for all positions. For the recruitment for
teachers, they are looking at a largely
homogenous population of people with a
certain skill set, and | think they have a
good idea of where to get that skill set in
Canada.

It’s clear the Department of Education
understood initially that they were not
going to be able to fill those jobs in the
immediate term with beneficiaries, so they
took a two-pronged approach. They didn’t,
in any way, change those standards. They
required that all of the school teachers have
a certain level of skills, but then they
developed this longer term plan to develop
beneficiaries, provide them with the
education, and provide them with the
training.

I think that there are other similar types of
professions, if you would like, that
Nunavut will always need, whether they be
nurses, or doctors, or accountants, or
engineers, or the likes. This type of process
could be applied to that and I think it’s
really worthwhile looking at. Thank you
very much.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. If that is the case, | would
like to ask the government about whether
they ought to be applying the Department
of Education’s model in their recruitment
practices. Are there any plans to apply it in
the future to the regional staffing issues?
How will they train beneficiaries for
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various government positions for the
future? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our action plan to create our gap analysis is
based on the education model. So, yes, we
are planning to utilize the model. We
would then be able to know what we have,
know what we need, and be able to predict
the training that is required for our people.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): | apologize,
Mr. Chairman. | wasn’t going to ask
another question, but the Deputy Minister
indicated in her response that they are
currently working on plans. When are we
going to see the final plans of the
government that we can look at? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our plan for the final is projected to be in
March 2015. We will be targeting priority
positions before then and implementing the
plan for those targeted priority positions
long before 2015. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Even if we wait until 2015,
the majority of the Members will most
likely no longer be representing their
constituents. Therefore, that poses a bit of a
concern.

As the deputy indicated, they will
undertake a plan prior to this being taken
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on. She also indicated that they are going to
be implementing it. | personally would like
to see the plan so that these important
issues are implemented within the
government. Some of them are very
important and have to be implemented as
soon as possible. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, the 2015 target date is for the final
implementation of the total plan. We will
be doing the plan in priority stages, so we
will be targeting the priority positions and
providing updates and reports long before
2015. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Okalik.

Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) By
2015, this is 2010; we could have at least
20 Inuit lawyers by that time. But the way |
think, anyway, is we have to get things
going if we want to get movement, so |
look forward to the department coming
forward with early decision-making on
some of these categories. (interpretation)
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | guess that was
just a statement.

I have one question there for the
government. The Auditor General’s report
makes a reference to the advantages that
the Department of Education has “when it
comes to filling gaps in capacity, including
authority to staff its own positions...” Is
the government considering giving more
departments the authority to staff their own
positions and, if not, why not? Ms.
Wasson.
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
guess the short answer at this time is no,
we have not discussed giving the authority
to more departments to staff their own
positions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Why not? Ms
Wasson.

Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There are positive and negative reasons for
staffing positions either centrally in the
departments or decentralized. The specialty
positions certainly are positions that the
departments are able to centralize
themselves because they can focus just on
the specialties, but there certainly are
reasons for centralization. The main ones |
think about for HR to do the staffing are
one is the economies of scale and two is
being able to following the staffing
processes. With the move to do a
generalized overview of staffing for
particular positions and the clean up of the
staffing processes, then we certainly will be
moving to those economies of scale. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. | have no more
names on my list. This brings us to the end
of the review of the Auditor General’s
report on the human resource capacity of
the Government of Nunavut.

I would like thank the staff of the Auditor
General as well as the witnesses for
participating in the review. We received a
number of commitments to provide the
Committee with information. We look
forward to receiving this from the
witnesses before the Assembly reconvenes
next month. Thank you.

| would like Members of the Committee
and the Auditor General’s staff to meet in
the Nanug Room in about 10 minutes, |
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guess. Thank you.

>>Committee adjourned at 14:27
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